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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY (MUHA) BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR AGENDA
August 12, 2022
101 Colcock Hall

Members of the Board of Trustees

Dr. James Lemon, Chairman Dr. Richard M. Christian, Jr.
Mr. Charles Schulze, Vice-Chairman Dr. Paul T. Davis

Ms. Terri R. Barnes Dr. Donald R. Johnson I

The Honorable James A. Battle, Jr. Ms. Barbara Johnson-Williams
Mr. William H. Bingham, Sr. Dr. G. Murrell Smith, Sr.

Dr. W. Melvin Brown Il Mr. Michael E. Stavrinakis

Dr. Henry F. Butehorn llI Thomas L. Stephenson, Esq.
Dr. C. Guy Castles IlI Dr. Bartlett J. Witherspoon, Jr.

Trustees Emeriti

Ms. Margaret M. Addison Dr. Charles B. Thomas, Jr.
Mr. Allan E. Stalvey Dr. James E. Wiseman, Jr.
Iltem 1. (0= I 0 3 O 1 [T oSN Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
ltem 2. (2001|071 | SRR Katherine Haltiwanger
Board Secretary
Item 3. Date of Next Meeting — October 14, 2022 ........coveeeiieicciiiieeee e Katherine Haltiwanger
Board Secretary
Item 4. Approval of Meeting Minutes of May 19, May 20, and June 24, 2022.........cccceeeeeeennns Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
Iltem 5. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair of MUHA and MUSC Board of Trustees..........cccceuue.e. Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
In accordance with the MUHA and MUSC Board of Trustees Bylaws, Section 111.B. and
C., the election of Chair and Vice-Chair will take place.
Recommendations and Informational Report of the President: Dr. David Cole
Item 6. General Informational Report of the President ..o, Dr. David Cole
President
Item 7. OThEr BUSINESS ...ceevireeeeee e ettt e e eeeeree e e e e e eestare e e e e e e e eeeetabaseeeeeeeseatarasaeaseessansssrseneeeas Dr. David Cole

President



Authority Operations, Quality, and Finance Committee: Dr. Murrell Smith, Chair

Item 8. MUSC Health STatus REPOIT ..ccciiceeiiiieeeee e e e e e e e e Dr. Patrick Cawley
Chief Executive Officer, MUSC Health

Iltem 9. Request to Apply for Certificate for Need Applications .......cccccccvivveeeeeeeciciciiiieeeeeeen, Dr. Patrick Cawley
Chief Executive Officer, MUSC Health

Dr. Patrick Cawley, CEO, MUSC Health, will present for approval a request for the
Medical University Hospital Authority to apply for Certificate of Need (CON) Applications

for the following:

MUSC Health Charleston Division

2 Operating Rooms at MUSC Health Charleston West Campus

1 CT machine at MUSC Health Charleston University Medical Center

1 Single Port da Vinci Robot at MUSC Health Charleston University Medical Center
1 Catheterization Lab at MUSC Health Charleston Ashley River Tower

MUSC Health Florence Division

e Infusion suite relocation and expansion to MUSC Health Florence Medical Center
Medical Mall

e 1 da Vinci Robot to be located at MUSC Health Florence Medical Center

e 13T MRI machine at MUSC Health Florence Medical Center

MUSC Health Midlands Division

e 1 Hybrid Operating Room to be located at MUSC Health Columbia Medical Center
Downtown

e Expansion of existing home health services to Richland County by MUSC Health
Kershaw Medical Center

Item 10. MUHA FINANCIial REPOI....uiiiiieie ettt e e e e e e s brrre e e e e e s e s sabeareeeeeeeesannnenns Lisa Goodlett
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Health

ltem 11. FY2023 MUSC Health Budget for APProval.........eeeeeeeeecciiiieiee e eeeevrreeee e e e e eennnes Lisa Goodlett
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Health

ltem 12. Property Divestiture Resolution for Approval .........coocciiiiie e Lisa Goodlett
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Health

ltem 13.  Quality and Patient Safety REPOIt.......ccoeiiiiiiie it Dr. Danielle Scheurer
Chief Quality Officer, MUSC Health

ltem 14. MUSC Governmental Affairs REPOIt .....cceeieciiiiieiee et e e e Mark Sweatman
Chief, Governmental Affairs



Item 15.

Item 16.

Item 17.

Item 18.

Item 19.

Item 20.

Item 21.

Item 22.

Item 23.

Item 24.

Item 25.

Item 26.

Item 27.

MUSC PhySiCians REPOIT ...eeiiiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt e e e ssrree e e e e s e s sabaree e e e s s s ssaabeaneee s Dr. Jonathan Edwards
President, MUSC Physicians

Other COMMITEEE BUSINESS ....iiiiiiieiee ettt ettt e e e e ettt s e e e s e s aaaa e s eeesesssans Dr. Murrell Smith
Committee Chair

MUHA and MUSC Physical Facilities Committee: Bill Bingham, Chair

MUHA Leases fOr APProVal ......ccuueiiiiiiieeieiiiee ettt ssite ettt e e st e e s ssrte e e s sreeeessnteeessntaeessnnes Jessica Paul
Chief Real Estate Officer, MUSC Health

MUSC Leases fOr APPIrOVaAl .....ccccuiiii ettt ettt e et e e e tte e e e ette e e e erre e e s snaeeeesnraeeeeanes Jessica Paul
Chief Real Estate Officer, MUSC Health

Clinical Science Building Wound Care Clinic Project

Budget Adjustment fOr APProval ... e Greg Weigle
Interim Chief Facilities Officer, MUSC

ltem removed.

College of Health Professions President Street Academic Building Project

Budget Adjustment fOr APProval ... s e Greg Weigle
Interim Chief Facilities Officer, MUSC

Construction Manager At-Risk Selections for Approval.......ccccccceeeecieeeincieee e Greg Weigle
Interim Chief Facilities Officer, MUSC

Other COMMILLEE BUSINESS ....uvviiiiieeeeiccciiiiiee e e e e eecctttrrre e e e e e et e e e e e e s sssnbeeeeeeeeesennnreenaeaeeeas Bill Bingham
Committee Chair

MUHA and MUSC Audit Committee: Tom Stephenson, Chair

Strategic Risk Management Update.......ccvveeeeeeeiiiiiiieeeee e eeevrree e e e e e enanees Reece Humphreys
Director, Strategic Risk Management

Office of Internal AUdit REPOI....cciii i Susan Barnhart
Director, Internal Audit

Other COMMITEEE BUSINESS ....vvviieeiiieeeiiiieeeccitieeeesreeeesite e e esite e e e seaaeeesnabaeesenasaeesennseeas Tom Stephenson
Committee Chair

Other Business for the Board of Trustees

Approval of CoNSENt AGENAA .....ceeiiiiiiiciiee et e e e Dr. James Lemon
Chairman



Item 28.

Item 29.

Item 30.

EXECULIVE SESSION cevuiiiiiiiiiiiie et e e e et e e e eteeeerabeeesaaaeeseaaaeeessraeesasnneerees Dr. James Lemon
Chairman

Upon proper motion and vote, the Board may convene a closed session pursuant to SC
Code Ann. §30-4-70. Although the Board will not vote on any items discussed in closed
session, the Board may return to public session to vote on items discussed.

New Business for the Board Of TrUSTEES .......evvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeees Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
Report from the ChairmMan ...t e e Dr. James Lemon

Chairman



MUSC Health - Board Package
MUHA - Medical University Hospital Authority
Interim Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

Medical University Hospital Authority (MUHA)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Consolidated 2-3

Statements of Net Position
Consolidated 5-10

Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated 12 -13

MUHA FASB to GASB Report 15
Consolidated

Note:

1) MUHA has recognized CARES stimulus funding related to COVID expenditures as non-operating
revenue per GASB guidance.

2) In FY2018, the internal financial statement format was changed to a FASB basis report to

appropriately match the income stream of state appropriations and expenses incurred in addition to a
presentation format that matches HUD and the credit market expectations.

Unaudited — For Management Use



Operating Revenues:
Net Patient Service Revenue
DSH
Retail Pharmacy Revenue
Other Revenue
State Appropriations
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Salaries Wages
Benefits
Noncash Pension Expense
Noncash Other Post Employment Benefits
Purchased Services
Physician Services
Pharmaceuticals
Retail Pharmaceuticals
Medical Supplies
COVID Supplies
Other Supplies
Utilities
Insurance
Leases
Other
Physician Clinic Expense

Total Operating Expenses

EBIDA

Depreciation
Interest

Operating Income (Loss)

Operating Margin

One Time Acquisition Costs

Adjusted Operating Income (Loss)

Adjusted Operating Margin

NonOperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gifts and Grants

Noncash Pension OPEB Nonemployer Contribution

Investment Income

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets
COVID Funding

Other NonOperating Expenses
Debt Issuance Costs

Total NonOperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before NonOperating Payments to MUSC Affiliates

Non Operating Payments to MUSC Affiliates

Change in Net Position

Total Margin

Operating Cash Flow Margin

Medical University Hospital Authority - Consolidated
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position

For the 12 Month - amounts in thousands
Period Ending - June 30, 2022
Modified FASB Basis

Current Month

Fiscal Year To Date

Actual Fixed Budget Variance Var % Actual Fixed Budget Variance Var % YTD Prior Year

$192,913 $215,823 $(22,910) -10.62% $ 2,508,001 $ 2,520,996 $(12,995) -0.52% $1,957,295
3,739 5,784 (2,046) -35.36% 70,775 68,565 2,211 3.22% 61,244
44,673 23,444 21,229 90.55% 404,004 278,672 125,332 44.97% 266,965
10,583 7,923 2,660 33.57% 108,698 94,028 14,670 15.60% 92,339
3,312 2,210 1,102 49.88% 30,967 27,467 3,500 12.74% 114,034
$255,220 $255,184 $36 0.01% $3,122,445 $2,989,728 $132,717 4.44% $2,491,877
$91,309 $75,439 $ 15,869 21.04% $954,474 $ 875,115 $79,359 9.07% $687,328
27,307 26,540 766 2.89% 297,787 306,998 (9,211) -3.00% 238,129
5,428 5,705 (277) -4.86% 44,905 72,042 (27,137) -37.67% 115,879
14,778 5,445 9,333 171.42% 106,371 66,900 39,471 59.00% 67,209
44,256 35,035 9,221 26.32% 427,184 410,897 16,288 3.96% 369,149
13,876 15,810 (1,934) -12.23% 169,900 178,419 (8,519) -4.77% 151,189
17,184 15,067 2,118 14.06% 212,708 183,543 29,165 15.89% 171,935
14,303 11,269 3,034 26.92% 192,039 134,188 57,851 43.11% 126,396
48,517 35,161 13,356 37.99% 449,074 428,316 20,758 4.85% 342,661
11,249 - 11,249 0.00% 24,060 - 24,060 0.00% 44,824
7,142 3,696 3,446 93.25% 61,008 58,527 2,482 4.24% 62,056
2,938 2,188 750 34.28% 30,721 29,092 1,629 5.60% 22,985
(174) 1,079 (1,253) -116.13% 10,298 12,288 (1,990) -16.19% 8,213
6,363 3,794 2,569 67.73% 50,102 44,778 5,324 11.89% 35,266
1,764 7,090 (5,326) -75.13% 38,090 60,584 (22,494) -37.13% 26,240
(1,836) 2,112 (3,948) -186.91% 8,412 26,645 (18,232) -68.43% 19,467
$304,403 $ 245,430 $58,974 24.03% $3,077,134 $2,888,331 $ 188,803 6.54% $2,488,925
$(49,184) $9,754 (58,938) -604.23% $45,311 $101,397 (56,086) -55.31% $2,952
9,428 9,602 174, -1.81% 113,170 114,786 1,616 -1.41% 109,246

$9, $9, $(174) $113, $114, $(1,616) $109,
$2,263 $ 3,389 $(1,126) -33.23% $37,472 $ 40,732 $ (3,260) -8.00% $ 38,871
$ (60,875) $(3,237) $(57,638)  1780.72% $(105,331) $(54,122) $(51,209) 94.62% $ (145,165)
-23.85% -1.27% -3.37% -1.81% -5.83%
$534 $2,302 $(1,767) -76.78% $10,429 $23,516 $(13,088) -55.65% S0
$(61,409) $(5,539) $(55,871) 1008.75% $ (115,760) $(77,638) $(38,121) 49.10% $ (145,165)
-24.06% -2.17% -3.71% -2.60% -5.83%
$2,174 $3,129 $(955) -30.53% $7,369 $34,823 $ (27,454) -78.84% $ 8,809
(3,105) 665 (3,770) -566.99% 4,340 7,979 (3,639) -45.61% 9,406
(1,547) 50 (1,597)  -3199.69% (10,467) 599 (11,066) -1847.46% 57
(136) - (136) 0.00% (226) (219) (8) 3.54% (810)
37,706 53,000 (15,294) -28.86% 132,846 53,000 79,846  150.65% 117,819
(2) (365) 364 -99.58% (1,467) (4,020) 2,553 -63.50% (3,517)
- - - 0.00% (1,727) - (1,727) 0.00% (16)
$ 35,090 $ 56,479 $(21,388) -37.87% $ 130,667 $92,162 $ 38,505 41.78% $ 131,747
$(26,319) $ 50,940 $(77,259) -151.67% $ 14,907 $14,524 $383 2.64% $(13,418)

(6,000) (3,000) (3,000) 100.00% (6,000) (6,000) - 0.00% -
$(32,319) $ 47,940 (80,259) -167.42% $ 8,907 $8,524 383 4.50% $(13,418)
-12.66% 18.79% 0.29% 0.29% -0.54%
0.16% 26.66% 8.62% 8.50% 10.82%

Unaudited - For Management Use
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Medical University Hospital Authority — Consolidated
Notes to the Interim Financial Statements

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets: YTD June 30, 2022 (Unaudited)
Actuals Compared to Fixed Budget

Revenue Explanation: June year-to-date net patient service revenues were unfavorable to budget by 0.5%, or $13.0M.
Adjusted discharges were unfavorable to budget by 2.5%. Inpatient surgeries were unfavorable to budget by 11.6% and
outpatient surgeries were favorable to budget by 2.8%. Transplant procedures was favorable to budget by 7.6%. Case
Mix Index was unfavorable $0.4M and Payor Mix shift was favorable $8.3M. Charity care and bad debt expenses were
$68.5M favorable to budget. Retail pharmacy revenues were favorable by $125.3M. Other Revenues were $14.7M
favorable to budget.

Expense Explanation: The salary rate variance was unfavorable to budget by $79.4M due to clinical staff vacancies
driving the utilization of premium and contract labor.

Based on the most recent PEBA report, the estimated FY22 impact for noncash pension expense was $27.1M favorable
for the fiscal year. The favorable position was driven by the improved investment performance in the PEBA Pension
Plan. Noncash OPEB (Other Post-Employment Benefits) expense is estimated to be $43.1M unfavorable due to a
decrease in the discount rate for assumption charges and increase in MUHA’s proportionate share. The net of these two
variance is $16.0M unfavorable YTD.*

*Increase in Net Position without noncash pension and OPEB expense results in $155.8M year-to-date.

Purchased Services were unfavorable to budget $16.3M due to maintenance contracts and other contractual services
and budget alignment with physician services.

Pharmaceuticals, not explained by volume, were unfavorable to budget by $32.5M due to higher COVID & Oncology
drug costs, as well as the national drug supply shortage. Retail pharmacy revenues, net of expenses, were favorable to

budget by $67.5M.

Medical and Other Supplies, not explained by volume, were $40.9M unfavorable to budget due to an increase in implant
prosthetic supplies.

Utilities were unfavorable to budget by $1.6M due seasonality.
Insurance was favorable to budget by $2.0M due to unanticipated savings in premium.

Leases and Other were favorable to budget by $17.2M due to unplanned equipment leases and reclassification of
expenses to Purchased Services.

Unaudited — For Management Use
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Medical University Hospital Authority - Consolidated
Statements of Net Position - amount in thousands
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Assets and Deferred Outflows

Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Restricted for Capital Projects and Major Programs
Cash Restricted for COVID-19 Stimulus Funding
Investments Unrestricted
Investments Restricted for Capital Projects and Major Programs
Patient Accounts Receivable, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible
Accounts of approximately $353,600,000 and $224,400,000
Due from Related Parties
Due from Third-Party Payors
Due from Joint Ventures and Partnerships
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

Investments Held by Trustees Under Indenture Agreements
Investments in Joint Ventures and Partnerships

Other Non-Current Assets

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position

Current Liabilities:
Current Installments of Long-Term Debt
Current Installments of Capital Lease Obligations
Current Installments of Notes Payable
Short-Term Debt
Advance Medicare Funding
Due to Joint Ventures and Partnerships
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll, Withholdings and Benefits
Other Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Long-Term Debt

Capital Lease Obligations
Notes Payable

Other Liabilities

Net Pension Liability

Net OPEB Liability

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflows
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted:
Under Indenture Agreements
Expendable for:
Capital Projects
Major Programs
COVID-19 Stimulus Funding
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows and Net Position

As of 6/30/2022 As of 6/30/2021
(unaudited) (audited)

386,580 S 399,102
74,373 35,469
8,913 34,937
263,439 216,100
35,163 31,600
396,835 280,238
7,012 1,070
6,416 5,382
- 8,557
230,727 191,093
1,409,457 S 1,203,548
70,449 S 63,421
32,844 7,007
6,479 9,197
1,043,305 965,878
2,562,534 S 2,249,051
857,341 S 741,843
3,419,875 S 2,990,894
35,442 S 32,276
16,114 8,582
1,169 2,159
80,000 -
76,980 104,156
2,705 -
188,011 148,508
148,448 106,968
28,900 25,603
- 77,804,527
577,769 S 78,232,779
744,606 S 700,534
117,521 73,782
- 1,169
- 78,644
1,027,557 1,174,094
1,327,515 1,060,313
3,794,968 S 3,516,894
217,619 S 73,644
4,012,587 S 3,590,538
140,283 S 162,707
70,448,729 126,841,428
25,760 45,995
33,776 30,798
8,913 34,937
(871,891) (937,502)
(592,711) S (599,644)
3,419,875 S 2,990,894

Unaudited - For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Balance Sheet: As of 06/30/2022 (Unaudited) and 06/30/2021 (Audited) - amounts in thousands

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents decreased by $12.5M from June 30, 2021. Significant FY22 events increasing cash
include $85.9M in Provider Relief Funds, a S80M RAN received for Midlands working capital, $21M in DSH UPL payments
$12M in Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) and Graduate Medical Education (GME) programs and $1.2M in
Managed Care Organization Teaching payments, and maturity of federal bonds since June 30, 2021.

6/30/2022
Bank Balance: Balance
Carrying Amount (cash and cash equivalents) S 386,580
Investment Unrestricted (cash and cash equivalents) 263,439
Total S 650,019
6/30/2022
Investment Income comprises the following: Balance
Dividend and interest income S 3,022
Realized and unrealized loss on investments (13,489)
S (10,467)

Net Accounts Receivable
Net patient accounts receivable increased $116M from June 30, 2021 due to a positive Case Mix Index and slower
collections from payors. June 2022 net accounts receivable days were 50 compared to June 30, 2021 at 45.

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance

Charleston Market S 271,014 S 217,428
Florence Market 45,987 43,006
Midlands Market 36,349 -
MUSC Community Physicians 23,500 -
Lancaster Market 17,526 18,976
MUHA Rural Health Clinics 2,459 828

S 396,835 S 280,238

Unaudited — For Management Use
6



MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Balance Sheet: As of 06/30/2022 (Unaudited) and 06/30/2021 (Audited) - amounts in thousands

Other Current Assets
The composition of other current assets is as follows:

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance
Inventory S 86,724 S 81,781
Non-Patient Accounts Receivable 73,687 51,167
Other Prepayments 70,316 58,144
S 230,727 S 191,093

Medicare and Medicaid owes MUHA $6.4M, an increase of $1.0M due to prior year Medicare cost adjustments.

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Medicare/Medicaid Accounts Receivable (Payable) Balance Balance

S 6,416 $ 5,382

The total net payable to MSV, MHI, Mainsail, Edgewater and MHP is reflected as a component of due from joint
ventures and partnerships, net on the Statement of Net Position.

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance
MUSC Health Partners (MHP) S (385) S 8,994
Edgewater Surgery Center 1,159 1,179
MUSC Health Initiatives (MHI) 207 207
Mainsail Health Partners 494 96
MUSC Strategic Ventures (MSV) (4,181) (1,918)
$ (2,705) $ 8,557

Unaudited — For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Balance Sheet: As of 06/30/2022 (Unaudited) and 06/30/2021 (Audited) - amounts in thousands

Advance Medicare Funding

The Authority received $182.8M in requested Accelerated Medicare Payments in September 2020. The payback provision
amount of accelerated Medicare payment requests due within one year are recorded in in the Statement of Net Position
as Advanced Medicare funding, with a current portion due $77.0M as of June 30, 2022.

Accounts Payable
Accounts Payable increased by $39.5M from June 30, 2021 due to an increase in volume from the Midlands acquisition.

Other Accrued Expenses
The composition of other accrued expenses is as follows:

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance

Accrued Interest S 5,258 S 2,126

Amounts due to contractors 1,660 329
Amounts due to South Carolina Medicaid

Disproportionate Share Hospital Program - 2,467

Lease Obligation 15,220 16,555

Other 6,761 4,126

S 28,900 S 25,603

Unearned Revenue
Unearned revenue decreased $0.1M from June 30, 2021 due to State Appropriations deferral.

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance
Disproportionate Share Hospital (DSH) S - S 74
Managed Care Supplement - 32
$ - $ 106

Unaudited — For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Balance Sheet: As of 06/30/2022 (Unaudited) and 06/30/2021 (Audited) - amounts in thousands

Long Term Debt

As of June 30 2022, Current Installments of Long-Term Debt relates to HUD debt for Ashley River Tower (ART), Shawn
Jenkins Children’s Hospital (SJCH) and the Central Energy Plant (CEP). Current Installments of Notes Payable relate to
the Sabin Street Energy Plant. A table of outstanding balances by major issuance is listed below:

Project (mo/yr issued)

SICH (06/2019)

ART (12/2012)

Capital Leases (various - see below)

CHS Acquisition (03/2019)

Lifepoint Acquisition (07/2021)

Nexton and Consolidated Service Center (10/2018)
CEP (12/2013)

Edgewater (03/2019)

Sabin Street (04/2013)

Lease Buy-Outs (various)

As of June 30, 2022, capital leases relate to various pieces of equipment and properties. A table of outstanding

balances by equipment description is listed below:

Project (month/year issued)

Summey Medical Pavilion (04/2019)
Equipment Lease - Charleston (12/2021)
Equipment Lease - Midlands (12/2021)
Imaging Equipment (01/2019)
Equipment Lease - Regional Health (12/2021)
Medical Malls (02/2019)

Patient Monitors (07/2016)

1 Poston Road (10/2021)

Cardiovascular Equipment (03/2020)
Ultrasound (03/2019)

Midlands Property Lease (08/2021)
Computer software (09/2019)
Generator (11/2014)

Lab Equip (01/2018)

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance

292,351 300,880
220,589 237,331
133,635 82,364
118,285 121,894

79,510 -
34,398 35,059
28,799 31,342
6,117 6,304
1,169 2,732
- 596
914,851 818,502

6/30/2022 6/30/2021
Balance Balance

46,277 43,775

18,247 -

16,422 -
17,887 16,622

12,000 -
9,424 9,637
6,617 9,636

5,278 -
967 2,010
234 379

165 -
118 168
- 122
- 16
133,635 82,364

Unaudited — For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Balance Sheet: As of 06/30/2022 (Unaudited) and 06/30/2021 (Audited) - amounts in thousands

Annual debt service costs for FY2021 totaled $119.1M. A table of debt service by major issuance is listed below, as well
as by equipment description as it relates to capital leases:

Monthly
Project (month/year issued) Debt Service

ART (12/2012) S 17,241
Capital Leases (various - see below) 16,114
SJCH (06/2019) 8,840
CHS Acquisition (03/2019) 3,719
CEP (12/2013) 2,643
Lifepoint Acquisition (07/2021) 2,111
Sabin Street (04/2013) 1,169
Nexton and CSC (10/2018) 695
Edgewater (03/2019) 192

$ 52,725

Monthly
Project (month/year issued) Debt Service

Patient Monitors (07/2016) S 3,240
Imaging Equipment (01/2019) 2,846
Equipment Lease - Charleston (12/2021) 2,687
Equipment Lease - Midlands (12/2021) 2,418
1 Poston Road (10/2021) 1,724
Equipment Lease - Regional Health (12/2021) 1,244
Summey Medical Pavilion (04/2019) 1,200
Cardiovascular Equipment (03/2020) 280
Medical Malls (02/2019) 273
Ultrasound (03/2019) 150
Computer Software (09/2019) 53
Midlands Property Lease (08/2021) -

S 16,114

Pension and Other Post Employment Benefit (OPEB) Liabilities
As of June 30, 2022, the net pension liability decreased by $146.5M from June 30, 2021.
As of June 30, 2022, the net other post-employment benefit liability increased $267.2M from June 30, 2021.

Unaudited — For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows - amounts in thousands
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts received from patients and third-party payors

Other cash receipts

Payments to suppliers and employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

State appropriations

Proceeds from CARES Funding

Proceeds from noncapital grants and gifts

Proceeds from revenue anticipation notes

Payments of revenue anticipation notes

Nonoperating expenditures

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Capital expenditures
Capital appropriations
Capital grants and gifts received
Proceeds from disposal of capital assets
Payments of principal on long-term debt
Proceeds from financing lease
Payment of bond issuance cost
Proceeds of escrow accounts
Payments of mortgage insurance premium
Payments on capital lease obligations
Proceeds on equipment replacement obligations
Interest payments

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sale and maturity of investments
Investment income received
Distributions from joint ventures and partnerships
Purchases of investments
Contributions to joint ventures and partnerships
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

As of 06/30/2022 As of 6/30/2021
(unaudited) (audited)

2,750,400 2,518,919
133,005 55,182
(2,840,691) (2,260,225)
42,714 313,876
30,967 78,034
87,938 116,345
2,631 -
80,000 -
- (120,000)
(1,467) (3,517)
200,069 70,861
(118,299) (91,971)
- 39,000

4,561 5,883

2 104
(110,983) (34,270)
129,683 2,264
(1,680) (16)

- 1,749

(975) -
(15,398) (12,843)
901 215
(36,610) (39,103)
(148,799) (128,987)
242,922 259,764
2,973 3,692
1,498 -
(309,880) (410,252)
(26,733) (4,000)
(89,221) (150,796)
4,763 104,954
479,017 374,063
483,780 479,018

Unaudited - For Management Use
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - Consolidated
Statements of Cash Flows - amounts in thousands
June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021

As of 06/30/2022 As of 6/30/2021
(unaudited) (audited)

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) S (102,818) S (220,328)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 113,417 109,246
Provision for uncollectible accounts 166,017 257,803
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: - -
Patient accounts receivable (282,614) (239,763)
Due from (to) third-party payors (1,034) 14,578
Due from (to) joint ventures and partnerships 10,660 (5,853)
Other current assets 22,996 (31,952)
Accounts payable 42,041 50,135
Other accrued/prepaid expenses and accrued payroll, withholding and benefits 34,862 9,812
Advanced Medicare funding (recoupment) (105,820) 182,801
Pension obligations 44,905 115,879
OPEB obligations 106,371 67,209
Note payable - 2,264
Related parties, net (6,163) 7,152
Unearned revenue (106) (2,841)
Net cash provided by operating activities S 42,714 S 316,140
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents at end
of year to the statement of net position:
Cash and cash equivalents S 386,580 S 399,102
Restricted for capital projects and other programs 83,286 70,405
Included in investments held by trustees under indenture agreements 13,913 9,509
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year S 483,779 S 479,017
Noncash transactions:
Capital assets acquired by capital lease, other financing S 16,503 S 19,840
Capital assets and working capital acquired via debt 76,380 -
Change in fair value of investments (11,458) (3,426)
Change in capital assets payable (2,130) (27,741)
Pro rata income from joint ventures and partnerships 602 1,650

Unaudited - For Management Use
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Crosswalk of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Income Statement Presentation to Government Accounting
Standards Board (GASB)



Medical University Hospital Authority - Consolidated

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position - amounts in thousands

For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

Modified FASB Basis

Crosswalk from FASB to GASB FASB
Fiscal Year To Date
Actual Budget Variance
Operating Revenues:
Net Patient Service Revenues S 2,478,999 S 2,520,996 -1.67%
Other Revenues - DHS Revenue 70,775 68,565 3.22%
Retail Pharmacy Revenue 404,004 278,672 44.97%
Other Revenues 106,076 94,029 12.81%
State Appropriations 30,967 27,467 12.74%
Total Operating Revenues $ 3,001 S 2,989,729 -99.90%
Operating Expenses:
Salaries Wages $ 920,982 $ 875,115 5.24%
Benefits 291,173 306,998 -5.15%
Noncash Pension Expense 44,905 72,042 -37.67%
Noncash Other Post Employment Benefits 106,371 66,900 59.00%
Purchased Services 419,403 410,897 2.07%
Physician Services 169,047 178,419 -5.25%
Pharmaceuticals 212,627 183,543 15.85%
Retail Pharmaceuticals 192,039 134,188 43.11%
Medical Supplies 448,353 428,316 4.68%
COVID Supplies 24,060 - 100.00%
Other Supplies 60,899 58,527 4.05%
Utilities 30,580 29,092 5.12%
Insurance 8,186 12,288 -33.38%
Leases 48,483 44,778 8.27%
Other 37,878 60,584 -37.48%
Physician Clinic Expense 30,525 26,645 14.56%
Total Operating Expenses $ 3,086 $ 2,888 5.44%
EBIDA $ 44 S 2,987 -98.52%
Depreciation $ 113,170 $ 114,786 -1.41%
Interest Expense s 37,472 § 40,732 -8.00%
Operating Income (Loss) $ (106) $ (153) -30.29%
Operating Margin -3.44% -0.01% 67330.40%
One Time Acquisition Costs $ 10,429 $ 23,516 -55.65%
100%
Adjusted Operating Income (Loss) $ (10,534) S (23,669) -55.49%
100%
Adjusted Operating Margin -340.82% -0.79% 42950.23%
NonOperating Revenues (Expenses):
Gifts and Grants $ 7,369 $ 34,823 -78.84%
Pension OPEB Nonemployer Contribution 4,340 7,979 -45.61%
Investment Income (10,467) 599 -1847.47%
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (226) (219) -3.54%
COVID-19 Stimulus Funding 132,846 53,000 -150.65%
Other NonOperating Expenses (1,467) (4,020) 63.50%
Debt Issuance Costs (1,727) - -100.00%
Total NonOperating Revenues (Expenses) $ 130,666 $ 92,162 41.78%
Income (Loss) Before NonOperating Payments $ 120,132 $ 14,524 727.13%
to MUSC Entities
NonOperating Payments to MUSC Entities (6,000) (6,000) 0.00%
Change in Net Position $ 114,132 $ 8,524 1238.97%
Total Margin 3692.60% 0.29%

Operating Revenues:

Net Patient Service Revenues

Other Revenues - DSH Revenue

Retail Pharmacy Revenue
Other Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:

Salaries Wages
Benefits
Noncash Pension Expense

Noncash Other Postemployment Benefits

Purchased Services
Physician Services
Pharmaceuticals

Retail Pharmaceuticals
Medical Supplies
COVID-19 Supplies
Other Supplies
Utilities

Insurance

Leases

Other

Physician Clinic Expense

Total Operating Expenses
EBIDA

Depreciation

Operating Income (Loss)
Operating Margin

One Time Acquisition Costs

Adjusted Operating Income (Loss)

Adjusted Operating Margin

NonOperating Revenues (Expenses):

State Appropriations
Gifts and Grants

Pension OPEB Nonemployer Contribution

Investment Income
Interest Expense

Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets

COVID-19 Stimulus Funding
Other NonOperating Expenses
Debt Issuance Costs

Total NonOperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before NonOperating Payments

to MUSC Entities

NonOperating Payments to MUSC Entities

Change in Net Position

Total Margin

Unaudited - For Management Use
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GASB
Fiscal Year To Date

Actual Budget Variance
2,478,999 $ 2,520,996 -1.67%
70,775 68,565 3.22%
404,004 278,672 44.97%
106,076 94,029 12.81%
3,059,854 S 2,962,262 3.29%
920,982 $ 875,115 5.24%
291,173 306,998 -5.15%
44,905 72,042 -37.67%
106,371 66,900 59.00%
419,403 410,897 2.07%
169,047 178,419 -5.25%
212,627 183,543 15.85%
192,039 134,188 43.11%
448,353 428,316 4.68%
24,060 - -100.00%
60,899 58,527 4.05%
30,580 29,092 5.12%
8,186 12,288 -33.38%
48,483 44,778 8.27%
37,878 60,584 -37.48%
30,525 26,645 14.56%
3,045,509 S 2,888,330 5.44%
14,345 $ 73,931 -80.60%
113,170 $ 114,786 -1.41%
(98,826) $ (40,855) 141.89%
-3.23% -1.38% 134.18%
10,429 S 23,516 -55.65%
#DIV/0!
(109,254) S (64,371) 69.73%
#DIV/0!
-3.57% -2.17% 64.31%
30,967 $ 27,467 12.74%
7,369 34,823 -78.84%
4,340 7,979 -45.61%
(10,467) 599 -1847.47%
(37,472) (40,732) -8.00%
(226) (219) -3.54%
132,846 53,000 -150.65%
(1,467) (4,020) 63.50%
(1,727) - -100.00%
124,162 S 78,897 57.37%
14,907 S 14,527 2.62%
(6,000) (6,000) 0.00%
8,907 S 8,527 4.46%

0.29% 0.29%



FACILITIES
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - KERSHAW
LEASE RENEWAL
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE RENEWAL: This lease renewal is for 5,614 square feet of clinical
space located at 1102 Roberts Street, Camden. The purpose of this lease renewal is to continue to
provide office space for MUSC Health General Surgery. The cost per square foot is $15.30. The
monthly rental payment will be $7,157.85, resulting in an annual lease amount of $85,894.20
beginning June 2024. Rent shall increase 2% in year four of the renewal term.

The current lease agreement expires 6/18/2024 and as an incentive the landlord agrees to replace
flooring, paint interior and exterior of premises, restripe and make minor repairs to the parking lot
upon execution of lease renewal.

The Medical University Hospital Authority intends to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
with MUSC Community Physicians for this renewal.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT
RENEWAL LEASE AGREEMENT X

LANDLORD: Roberts Street Real Estate, LLC

LANDLORD CONTACT: Vincent Sheheen, Landlord Representative

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: MUSC Health General Surgery, Susan Burroughs
SOURCE OF FUNDS: Kershaw Health Surgery

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Seven (7) years: [6/19/2024 — 6/18/2031]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $15.30
TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT:
Year 1 $85,894.29  Year 5 $87,612.08
Year 2 $85,894.29  Year 6 $87,612.08
Year 3 $85,894.29  Year 7 $87,612.08
Year 4 $87,612.08

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $608,131.19
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

FULL SERVICE
NET X



FACILITIES
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - COLUMBIA
LEASE RENEWAL
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE RENEWAL: This lease renewal is for 2,124 square feet of space
located in MOB I at 2750 Laurel Street, Suite 104, Columbia. The purpose of this lease renewal is
to continue provide space for MUSC Health Imaging. The cost per square foot is $25.25. The
monthly rental payment will be $4,469.25, resulting in an annual lease amount of $53,631.00. Rent
shall increase annually 3% with the tenant paying operating costs and taxes over the 2023 base
year which is estimated at $3.38 a square foot.

The landlord shall provide a renewal allowance of $21,240.00.

The Medical University Hospital Authority intends to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
with MUSC Community Physicians for this renewal.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT
LEASE RENEWAL X

LANDLORD: PMOB, LLC

LANDLORD CONTACT: Brandon Shockley, Trinity Partners

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: MUSC Health Imaging, Joe Bernard and Dr. Tim Adams
SOURCE OF FUNDS: General Operating Funds

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: [1/1/2023-12/31/2027]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $25.25

TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT:
Year1  $53,631.00
Year2 $55,239.93
Year3 $56,897.13
Year4  $58,604.04
Year5 $60,362.16

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $284,734.26
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

FULL SERVICE X
NET



FACILITIES
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - COLUMBIA
LEASE RENEWAL
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE RENEWAL: This lease renewal is for 5,807 square feet of space
located in MOB I at 2750 Laurel Street, Suite 200, Columbia. The purpose of this lease renewal is
to continue provide space for MUSC Health Cardiothoracic Surgery. The cost per square foot is
$25.25. The monthly rental payment will be $12,218.90, resulting in an annual lease amount of
$146,626.75. Rent shall increase annually 3% with the tenant paying operating costs and taxes
over the 2023 base year which is estimated at $3.38 a square foot.

The landlord shall provide a renewal allowance of $58,070.00.

The Medical University Hospital Authority intends to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding
with MUSC Community Physicians for this renewal.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT
LEASE RENEWAL X

LANDLORD: PMOB, LLC
LANDLORD CONTACT: Brandon Shockley, Trinity Partners

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: MUSC Health Cardiothoracic Surgery, Joe Bernard and
Dr. Tim Adams

SOURCE OF FUNDS: General Operating Funds

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: [1/1/2023-12/31/2027]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $25.25
TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT:
Year 1 $146,262.75
Year 2 $151,025.55
Year 3 $155,556.32
Year 4 $160,223.01
Year 5 $165,029.70

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: §$778,097.33
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

FULL SERVICE X
NET



FACILITIES
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - COLUMBIA
NEW LEASE
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE: This new lease is for 1,972 square feet of space located at 1 Science
Court, Suite 200, Columbia. The purpose of this lease is to provide space for MUSC Laboratory
Services. The cost per square foot is $18.83. Rent shall include all operating costs except for
separately metered utilities specific to the occupant use. The monthly rental payment will be
$3,094.40, resulting in an annual lease amount of $37,132.76. Rent shall increase annually 2%.

MUHA shall complete renovations outside of this lease agreement as needed.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT X
LEASE RENEWAL

LANDLORD: PPS Services, LLC

LANDLORD CONTACT: Vickie Cox, Landlord Representative

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: MUSC Laboratory Services, Tony Bull
SOURCE OF FUNDS: General Operating Funds

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: Estimated Start Date - January 2023
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $18.83
TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT:
Year 1 $37,132.76
Year 2 $37,875.42
Year 3 $38,632.92
Year 4 $39,405.58
Year 5 $40,193.69

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $193,240.37
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

MODIFIED X
NET



FACILITIES
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY - MARION
LEASE RENEWAL
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022
DESCRIPTION OF LEASE RENEWAL: This lease renewal is for 9,597 square feet of space
located at 1205 North Main Street, Marion. The purpose of this lease renewal is to continue provide
space for MUSC Internal Medicine. The cost per square foot is $11.33. Rent shall include taxes
and insurance. The monthly rental payment will be $9,061.17, resulting in an annual lease amount

of $108,734.01. There is no annual rent increase for this property, annual rent shall remain constant
throughout the renewal term.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT
LEASE RENEWAL X
LANDLORD: BAS Partners, LLC
LANDLORD CONTACT: Kenneth Cobb, Landlord Representative
TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: MUSC Internal Medicine, Jay Hinesley
SOURCE OF FUNDS: General Operating Funds
LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: [9/1/2022-8/31/2027]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $11.33
TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT: $108,734.01
TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $543,670.05
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

MODIFIED X
NET



FACILITIES
ACADEMIC
LEASE RENEWAL
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE RENEWAL: This lease renewal is for 10,016 square feet of office,
clinical and research space located at 30 Bee Street, Charleston. The purpose of this lease is to
continue to provide office space for College of Medicine, OB/GYN Chair Research, Student
Health Services, Department of Neurosciences and Center for Biomedical Imaging. The cost per
square foot is $11.51 (rounded). The monthly rental payment will be $9,606.33, resulting in an
annual lease amount of $115,275.96. There is no annual rent increase for this property, annual rent
shall remain constant throughout the renewal term.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT
RENEWAL LEASE AGREEMENT X

LANDLORD: University Medical Associates of the Medical University of South Carolina
LANDLORD CONTACT: Eva Greenwood, Chief Financial Officer

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: College of Medicine, Student Health Services, Department
of Neurosciences and Center for Biomedical Imaging, Rick Anderson

SOURCE OF FUNDS: College of Medicine, OB/GYN Chair Research, Student Services and
Department of Neurosciences

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: [4/1/2023 —3/31/2027]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $11.51
TOTAL ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT: $115,275.96

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $576,379.80
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

FULL SERVICE
NET X



FACILITIES

ACADEMIC

NEW LEASE
FOR APPROVAL

AUGUST 12, 2022

DESCRIPTION OF LEASE: This lease is for 2,300 rentable square feet of clinical space located
at Nexton MOB, 5500 Front Street, Suite 450 in Summerville. The purpose of this lease is to
provide space for MUSC College of Dental Medicine. The cost per square foot is $37.15 and
comprised of $25.00 a square foot for base rent and $12.15 per square foot for CAM including
taxes and insurance. The monthly rental payment will be $7,120.42, resulting in an annual lease
amount of $85,445.00. The base rent will increase annually 3% beginning and CAM shall increase
annually based on actual costs with a 5% cap on controllable expense.

Landlord shall build out space based on Tenant specifications and provide an upfit allowance of
$126,500.00 for renovations. Any renovation overage shall be reimbursed by the Tenant to the
Landlord.

NEW LEASE AGREEMENT X
RENEWAL LEASE AGREEMENT

LANDLORD: HP Summerville Palmetto, LLC

LANDLORD CONTACT: XXXXXXX

TENANT NAME AND CONTACT: College of Dental Medicine, Dr. Sorin Teich
SOURCE OF FUNDS: College of Dental Medicine

LEASE TERMS:
TERM: Five (5) years: [estimated 2/1/2023 — 1/31/2028]
AMOUNT PER SQUARE FOOT: $37.15

TOTAL ESTIMATED ANNUALIZED LEASE AMOUNT:
Year 1 $85,445.00
Year2 $88,567.25
Year3 $91,811.11
Year4 $95,181.63
Year 5 $98,684.08

TOTAL AMOUNT OF LEASE TERM: $459,689.07
EXTENDED TERM(S): To be negotiated
OPERATING COSTS:

FULL SERVICE
MODIFIED _ X



FACILITIES
MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT
FOR APPROVAL

DATE: August 12, 2022

PROJECT TITLE:  Clinical Sciences Building — Wound Care and Hyperbaric Clinic
PROJECT NUMBER: 210066

TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET: $ 900,000

SOURCE(S) OF FUNDS:  MUSC Health Funds — FY23 Capital Carryover Funding

SCOPE OF WORK: This project is to effect all required renovations and repairs to accommodate
a new Wound Care Suite including exam rooms and a new wound care room hyperbaric chamber
room and all requisite infrastructure to support the hyperbaric chambers.

JUSTIFICATION: The Wound Care Unit and Hyperbaric project is a crucial component of
MUSC Health’s strategy to deliver comprehensive and advanced care within the State of South
Carolina. The Wound Care Clinic and Hyperbaric chamber is located within the Clinical
Sciences Building and due to on-going clinical operations by the previous clinical occupancy,
many areas of the building structure and utilities were not fully accessible to the design team for
verification and documentation. Once areas were uncovered during construction operations,
many of these building components, including building utilities are requiring to be brought up to
code and/or repaired in order to provide reliable and uninterrupted patient care. Additionally,
this project was budgeted in early 2021 and during bidding in 2022, overall construction bids
received were approximately 30% above budgeted amounts due to market pressures on
construction materials and labor

In, closing we are asking the Board to approve a budget increase of $400,000 of prior approved
funds to allow for the completion of the Wound Care Clinic and Hyperbaric Chamber.



FACILITIES
ACADEMIC/RESEARCH
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT
FOR APPROVAL

DATE: August 12, 2022

PROJECT TITLE: College of Health Professions President Street Academic Building
PROJECT NUMBER: H51-9854
TOTAL ESTIMATED BUDGET:  $50,000,000.00

SOURCE(S) OF FUNDS:  $19.775 MM CHP Clinical Reserves
$5MM Institutional Support (Clinical)
$25.225 MM State Institution Bonds

SCOPE OF WORK: Project will construct a six story, approximately 89,000 gross square foot
building on President Street directly north of the Bioengineering building. The bottom four
floors will be finished for current occupancy, the top two floors will be shell space for future
College of Health Professions expansion. The building will include 5000 square feet of research
space, a 6000 square foot auditorium, and faculty and staff office and support space. An
elevated pedestrian bridge is included connecting to the 2™ floor of the existing Bioengineering
building.

JUSTIFICATION: The College of Health Professions has taken action to increase overall
student numbers by 20% by FY24 in response to a projected healthcare workforce shortage in
South Carolina and MUSC Board of Trustees directive in Fall 2018 for academic growth across
programs expected to face this deficiency. The following table shows the positive growth trend
over the past few years. We expect this number to continue to increase over the next few years,
which will more than exceed our 20% proposed growth in student numbers.

Year: 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total CHP Enrolled Students: 763 769 888 1049

The College has taken additional steps to address the healthcare workforce shortage in South
Carolina to include adding new academic programs.
e Proposal for Master’s in Speech-Language Pathology program (Spring 2019)
o Fall 2021 — first cohort of 40+ SLP students matriculate



o Physician Assistant Studies (PAS) received approval from the Accreditation Review
Commission on Education for the Physician Assistant, Inc, (ARC-PA) to increase the
class size from 60 students to 96 students per cohort

e Proposal for Master’s in Genetic Counseling program (Fall 2019)

o Fall 2023 — first cohort of Genetic Counseling students expected to matriculate

e Proposal for a Master’s in Clinical Neurophysiology

o Fall 2024 — first cohort of Clinical Neurophysiology students expected to
matriculate

e Proposal for a Bachelor’s / Master’s in Respiratory Therapy (Fall 2021)

o Fall 2024 - first cohort of Respiratory Therapy students expected to matriculate

To adequately accommodate this growth in student numbers and programs, it is imperative that
our College expand our physical footprint on the downtown campus. Additional offices for
faculty and staff, a large auditorium that can accommodate the increased class sizes, and
additional research space are all critical to our continued growth and sustainability.

This request is for approval to increase the budget by $10,225,000.00. There has been
significant cost escalation in construction since previous approval in 2021. Also, approximately
14,000 additional square feet has been added to the footprint of the proposed building.
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA (MUSC) BOARD OF TRUSTEES
REGULAR AGENDA
August 12, 2022
101 Colcock Hall

Members of the Board of Trustees

Dr. James Lemon, Chairman Dr. Richard M. Christian, Jr.
Mr. Charles Schulze, Vice-Chairman Dr. Paul T. Davis

Ms. Terri R. Barnes Dr. Donald R. Johnson Il

The Honorable James A. Battle, Jr. Ms. Barbara Johnson-Williams
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200 | | PP Katherine Haltiwanger
Board Secretary
Date of Next Meeting — October 14, 2022 ........ccveeiviiieeeeiiieeeecieee e esieee e esieee e Katherine Haltiwanger
Board Secretary
Approval of Meeting Minutes of May 19, May 20, and June 24, 2022..........ccccceceeuuueen. Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
Election of Chair and Vice-Chair of MUHA and MUSC Board of Trustees.........cccceee.... Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
In accordance with the MUHA and MUSC Board of Trustees Bylaws, Section III.B. and
C., election of Chair and Vice-Chair will take place.
Recommendations and Informational Report of the President
OTNEI BUSINESS ..ttt nnnnnnnnnnnnn Dr. David Cole

President



Research and Institutional Advancement Committee: Terri Barnes, Chair

ltem 7. Institutional AdvancemMent UPdate.......coooccuiiiiiiie et e ettt e e e e e rabrare e e e e e Kate Azizi
Vice President for Institutional Advancement

Item 8. Office of RESEArch UPdate .......oviieiiiieicieee ettt et Dr. Lori McMahon
Vice President for Research

ltem 9. MUSC FOUNation UPAate ....ccoeciieiiiiiiiei ittt siteee st e e svtee e s sntee e s ssaeaee s sneaeessanes Stuart Ames
Chief Executive Officer, MUSC Foundation

Item 10. Other COMMITEEE BUSINESS .....iiiieiiiiiie ettt e e e e e et ea e e e e e s e e tbab s eeeseresabaaeeaens Terri Barnes
Committee Chair

Education, Faculty & Student Affairs Committee: Barbara Johnson-Williams, Chair

ltem 11. o)V o1l 2(=T Lo o U UUURNt Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

Iltem 12.  Changes to Faculty Handbook Section 5.06: Faculty Evaluations..........ccccccoevviniieennennn. Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

Item 13. Other COMMITEEE BUSINESS ..uueiieiiiiiiee ettt ettt e e e ee b e e e eeeaaas Barbara Johnson-Williams
Committee Chair

Finance and Administration Committee: Jim Battle, Chair

ltem 14. MUSC FIN@NCial REPOIt....uuveeiiiiiiiiiiiieeee ettt e e e e e s ssbtaee e e e s s s s saabraeeeeessennnnnns Patrick Wamsley
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC

ltem 15. FY2023 MUSC and AHEC Budgets for Approval .......cccccveveceeriircieee e Patrick Wamsley
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC

Iltem 16.  Amended Resolution of General Obligation State Institution Bonds for Approval ....... Patrick Wamsley
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC

An amended resolution authorizing the issuance of not exceeding $25,225,000 of
General Obligation State Institution Bonds will be presented for approval. The proceeds
of the Bonds shall be applied to defray a portion of the costs associated with the
construction of the new 89,000 SF College of Health Professions Academic Building;
reimburse the University for expenses incurred in anticipation of the issuance of such
bonds; and, pay the costs of issuance of such bonds.

Item 17. MUSC Physicians Financial REPOIt......ccciiiieciiiiiieie et eesrrne e e e e e Eva Greenwood
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Physicians

ltem 18. FY2023 MUSC Physicians Operating Budget for Information .........ccccccvvviiieiinciienenee, Eva Greenwood
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Physicians



Item 19.

Item 20.

Item 21.

Item 22.

Item 23.

Item 24.

Item 25.

Item 26.

Item 27.

FY2023 MUSC Physicians Budget for Capital Asset Purchases
In Excess of $50,000 fOr APProVal ....cc.eccueeceeieeiie et eete et ereeeres et eteesteesteesreesaee e Eva Greenwood
Chief Financial Officer, MUSC Physicians

Diversity and Inclusion Update ........cccceeeeieviiiiiieeeie e, Dr. Willette Burnham-Williams
Interim Chief Equity Officer

Other COMMITEEE BUSINESS .....eiiiiiieiiee e eeeeeet e e ettt e e e e e et bt e e s e e e seaab e sesesesssanansessaessnes Jim Battle
Committee Chair

Other Business for the Board of Trustees

FY2022 Performance Evaluation of MUSC President .........ccceeeeiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeeieviieee s Dr. James Lemon
Chairman

As required by the State Agency Head Salary Commission, the FY2022 Agency Head
performance evaluation for Dr. David Cole will be submitted to the agency by August 15,

2022. The results of the performance evaluation will be discussed in closed session.

Item removed.

Approval of CoNSENt AGENTA .....oiieiiiiieicee e e e e e Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
o oV L AV SIN YT (o] o TP Dr. James Lemon
Chairman

Upon proper motion and vote, the Board may convene a closed session pursuant to SC
Code Ann. §30-4-70. Although the Board will not vote on any items discussed in closed
session, the Board may return to public session to vote on items discussed.

New Business for the Board Of TrUSTEES .......ccivvevviieiiiiieeeeeeee e Dr. James Lemon
Chairman
Report from the ChairmMan ... e e Dr. James Lemon

Chairman
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5.06 Faculty Evaluation

Senate Provost’s Provost's Board of Reviewed for Related

Approval Council Approval Trustees Accuracy and | Compliance

Date Approval Date Approval Consistency Information
Date Date

Plea Mar 2018 | Mar 2018 | Apr 2018 | May 2018

2017Jun

2021

Ao 2000

The State of South Carolina requires that all state universities and colleges evaluate faculty
performance. In order to comply with this requirement, MUSC has developed a faculty
evaluation procedure which has been approved by the division of Human Resources of the

State Fiscal Accountability Authority (FAA) Budgetand-Centrol Board.

Each-college-oftheThe university has establishedan-appreved standardized evaluation

categories and a standardized rating scalePerformanee-Appraisal-form-( for use in faculty
evaluatlon§) acm@q#ef all colleges and AAmeﬁ%amed—m—lﬂ%eFfel—}ea&c—lee&mﬁc—dﬂ%aba%e

. A 2021 university-
approved electronic system is used Jihe—&mveﬁMlas—deetded—te—aﬂhze—hﬁeefehe—as—the
system-to conduct and house the faculty evaluation process. Evaluation categories approved
to evaluateion-all faculty performance are the following:

e Teaching/Instruction/Mentorship (e.g., Curriculum Support / Instructional
Development / Academic Consultation / Student Advising / Teaching)

e Research/Scholarly Activity (e.g., Presentations / Publications / Professional
Development / Innovation)

e Service/Institutional Activity: (e.g., Institutional / Community)

e Administration: (e.g., Leadership / Mentoring / Supervision / Management)

e Professional Practice (e.g., maintenance of accreditation and certifications for /{ Formatted: Font: Not Bold

clinical practice; patient care) /{ Formatted: Font: Not Bold

e Other (activities that do not fall into one of the above categories)

Not all categories must be used for each faculty member, but for categories that are
applicable, the following three-point scale will be used: “Does not Meet / Meets / Exceeds
Expectations.”-: Categories that do not apply to a facultv member are labelled as “not
applicable” and no ratmg will be provided. “rnot 3 : aca

fefmsemeﬂa—as—ﬂeeded—staemﬁc criteria used to evaluate each categorv are agreed to by the
Chair or Direct Supervisor and faculty member on an annual basis. Colleges and AAF may
provide examples of appropriate criteria to their faculty. The evaluationferm is completed




annually for each faculty member, and a copy of the evaluation is maintained in the
university-approved electronic system. b :

aterfeln e pinpermnaentilegndesthe
purview-of the-dean-or-direetor—The faculty member has a right to full disclosure of their
Performance AppraisalEvaluationAppraisalEvaluation,

Formatted: Font color: Auto

form;-but-has-Faculty members have the right to make written comments concerning
agreement or disagreement with the evaluation and to have those comments included within

their evaluation record.

"—‘[ Formatted: Indent: Left: 0"

"—‘[ Formatted: Space Before: Auto, After: Auto
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The Medical University of South Carolina and Affiliated Organizations

Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2022

Assets & Deferred Outflows
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted
State Appropriation Receivable
Student Tuition and Fees Receivable
Student Loan Receivable
Grants and Contracts Receivable
Capital Improvement Bond Proceeds Receivable
Lease Receivable
Other Receivables
Investments
Prepaid ltems
Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation
Due from Hospital Authority
Due from Other Funds
Bond Issue Costs
Derivative Instruments Fair Value / Deferred Outflows
Deferred loss on Debt Refinancing
Deferred Outflows-Pensions
Deferred Outflows-OPEB
Other Assets

Total Assets & Deferred Outflows

Liabilities & Deferred Inflows

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll and Other Payroll Liabilities

Accrued Compensated Absences

Deferred Revenue

Retainages Payable

Long-Term Debt

Interest Payable

Deposits Held for Others

Due to Hospital Authority

Due to Other Funds

Federal Loan Program Liability

Derivative Instruments Fair Value / Deferred Inflows

Net Pension Liability

Net OPEB Liability

Deferred Inflows-Leases

Deferred Inflows-Pensions

Deferred Inflows-OPEB

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows
Net Position

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflows and Net Position
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University

Area Health CHS
Education Development
Consortium Company

458,133,490
17,234,526
27,041,664

1,582,540
11,364,514
43,168,221
14,105,044

3,717,799

7,860,810

403,658,228

8,956,044

118,985,040

13,636
15,383,720
177,193,231

$ 4,953,533 $ -
- 746,168

- 4,717,842

- 884,843
- 239,064

1,308,398,507

$ 4,983,406 $ 6,625,903

12,094,433
23,207,216
31,891,281
35,017,895
167,470,336
942,985
4,112,798
11,955,031
11,417,914
476,645,126
663,622,222
14,771,605
4,763,452
44,963,865
20,123,977

12,942 -
205,450 B

- 5,450,000

- 61,312
87,919 -
(15) -

1,523,000,136

(214,601,629)

$ 306,296 $ 5,511,312

4,677,110 1,114,591

$

1,308,398,507

$ 4,983,406 $ 6,625,903




The Medical University of South Carolina

Budgeted Funds Comparison to Budget (Expenses Classified by Category)

For the period ending June 30, 2022

Revenues

Federal Grants & Contracts
Federal Grants Indirect Cost Recoveries
State Grants & Contracts
Private Grants & Contracts
Private Grants Indirect Cost Recoveries
Total Grants & Contracts
State Appropriations
Tuition and Fees
Pass-Through Revenues
Gifts
Transfers from (to) MUSC Physicians
Sales and Services of Educational Department:
Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises
Interest and Investment Income
Endowment Income
Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous - Residents
Authority Revenue
Authority Revenue - Residents
Intra-Institutional Sales
Total Other

Expenditures
Salaries
Miscellaneous Personnel Expenditures
Fringe Benefits
Total Personnel

Contractual Services
Pass-through Expenditures
Supplies
Fixed Charges
Equipment
Travel
Trainee / Scholarships
Other Expenses
Debt Service

Total Other

Other Additions (Deductions)
Transfers from(to) Plant Funds
Other Transfers
Prior Year Fund Balance Usage
Total Other Add

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) in Fund Balance

Non-Budgeted ltems
Net Unfunded Pension Expense
Net Unfunded OPEB Expense
Net Lease Activity - GASB 87
Depreciation
Endowment Gains/Losses
Gain (Loss) on Disposition of Property
Other Non-Budgeted ltems
SRECNP Bottom Line

Prorated Budget

Budget (Note) Actual Variance

$ 146,101,198 $ 146,101,198 $ 153,965,502 $ 7,864,304 F
40,160,347 40,160,347 42,004,045 1,843,698 F
9,613,629 9,613,629 10,378,618 764,989 F
30,399,388 30,399,388 35,902,559 5,503,171 F
5,400,344 5,400,344 6,567,040 1,166,696 F
231,674,906 231,674,906 248,817,764 17,142,858 F
119,466,076 119,466,076 126,282,154 6,816,078 F
112,510,653 112,510,653 110,907,165 (1,603,488) u
118,009,537 118,009,537 98,837,039 (19,172,498) U
17,162,252 17,162,252 24,165,481 7,003,229 F
91,669,459 91,669,459 100,118,006 8,448,547 F
S 18,855,778 18,855,778 17,998,053 (857,725) U
14,622,507 14,622,507 14,210,236 (412,271) U
21,702 21,702 55,330 33,628 F
4,401,640 4,401,640 4,296,841 (104,799) U
16,880,163 16,880,163 14,889,530 (1,990,633) U
8,140,000 8,140,000 8,891,247 751,247 F
92,200,126 92,200,126 93,900,211 1,700,085 F
69,717,575 69,717,575 67,524,999 (2,192,576) U
42,588,049 42,588,049 41,341,337 (1,246,712) U
726,245,517 726,245,517 723,417,629 (2,827,888) U
Total Revenues 957,920,423 957,920,423 972,235,393 14,314,970 F
$ 336,998,827 $ 336,998,827 $ 325,231,720 $ 11,767,107 F
5,011,011 5,011,011 6,289,133 (1,278,122) U
133,909,134 133,909,134 129,871,239 4,037,895 F
475,918,972 475,918,972 461,392,092 14,526,880 F
165,546,428 165,546,428 155,422,218 10,124,210 F
118,009,537 118,009,537 98,837,039 19,172,498 F
56,462,643 56,462,643 61,225,197 (4,762,554) U
54,092,026 54,092,026 53,577,175 514,851 F
8,913,903 8,913,903 12,916,768 (4,002,865) U
3,800,334 3,800,334 1,937,320 1,863,014 F
21,575,690 21,575,690 28,174,542 (6,598,852) U
6,519,084 6,519,084 3,154,029 3,365,055 F
8,294,082 8,294,082 18,123,388 (9,829,306) U
$ 443,213,727 $ 443,213,727 $ 433,367,676 9,846,051 F
Total Expenditures $ 919,132,699 $ 919,132,699 $ 894,759,768 24,372931 F
(56,846,519) (56,846,519) (62,827,805) (5,981,286) U
51,690 51,690 (257,428) (309,118) U
28,170,406 28,170,406 25,025,122 (3,145,284) U
itions (Deductions) $  (28,624,423) $  (28,624,423) $  (38,060,111) $ (9,435,688) U
$ 10,163,301 $ 10,163,301 $ 39,415,514 29,252,213 F

1,521,425

(34,375,695)

(514,674)

(36,209,573)

(7,863,730)

(437,457)

55,222,665

16,758,475
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The Medical University of South Carolina

Direct Expenditures on Federal Grants and Contracts
(By Responsibility Center)

For the 12 Month Period Ending June 30, 2022

Administration 2,740,494
College of Dental Medicine 1,903,979
College of Graduate Studies 2,363,340
College of Health Professions 9,129,026
College of Medicine 106,929,436
College of Nursing 3,288,192
College of Pharmacy 931,220
Hollings Cancer Center 2,848,474
Library 1,267,347
Office of Sponsored Programs 31,765

$131,433,274

NOTE: The federal direct expenditures shown above were incurred by the University.
The federal grant and contract revenue earned to cover these direct expenditures.
was $131,433,274.

In addition to this federal grant and contract revenue, the University received
$42,004,045 in federal monies to reimburse it for Facilites and Administration
(F+A) costs incurred to administer the above federal grants and contracts.
$41,824,949 of the F+A recoveries received is unrestricted which means the
University can use it for any of its operating needs. The remaining $179,096
represents the F+A recoveries on non-research federal grants and contracts.
This amount is required to be remitted to the State.

University direct federal expenditures $131,433,274
Facilites and Administration costs $42,004,045

Federal operating grants and contracts $173,437,320
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THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

This financial statement provides summarized information for The Medical University of South
Carolina (MUSC) and its affiliated organizations in discrete columns on the same page. The
purpose of this financial report is to provide information that will be helpful to those who must

make decisions about MUSC.

Note 2. State Appropriations
State appropriations revenue is prorated evenly over the twelve month period for which the funds

are to be spent.

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents - Restricted

Cash and cash equivalents - restricted include bond proceeds, the debt service reserve accounts,

and the debt service fund accounts.

Note 4. Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation

The University's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation consists of the following:

Construction in progress $ 34,796,065
Projects in progress 513,308
Land/Bldgs/Equipment/Accumulated depreciation 368,348,855

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation $ 403,658,228

Note 5. Construction in Progress

Construction in progress consists of the following projects and expenditures to date and is included

in Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation on the Statement of Net Position.

Jun 30, 2021 Fiscal Year 2022 Jun 30, 2022
Balance Added Capitalized Balance
SEI Chiller Replacement $ 2,343,134 $ 68,965 $ - $ 2,412,099
New College of Pharmacy Addition 7,171,858 18,702,792 - 25,874,650
BSB AHU #4 and #4A Replacement 38,704 1,439,426 - 1,478,130
Combined Heat & Power Facility - 1,500,000 1,500,000
Others less than $1,000,000 (ending balance) 6,210,290 7,188,647 (9,867,751) 3,531,186
Total construction in progress $ 15,763,986 $ 28,899,830 $ (9,867,751) $ 34,796,065
Note 6. Deferred Revenue
The University's deferred revenue consists of the following:

State appropriations $ -
Grants and contracts 17,683,420
Student tuition and fees 14,007,743
Other 3,326,732

Total Deferred Revenue $ 35,017,895
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THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2022

Note 7. Long Term Liabilities
The University's long term liabilities consist of the following:

Lease Obligations $ 70,930,731
Higher Ed Refunded Revenue bond payable 17,900,000
State Institution bonds payable 41,985,000
Energy Performance Note Payable 29,051,688
Premium on State Institution bonds payable 6,722,684
Premium on Refunding Revenue Bonds 880,233

Total Long Term Liabilities $ 167,470,336

Note 8. Summary of Net Position

The University implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions in fiscal year 2015

and GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Post Employment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB)
in fiscal year 2018. These statements require participating employers to report their proportionate share of the plans'

net pension liability and OPEB liabilities, pension and OPEB expense and deferred outflows and inflows. In fiscal year 2021,
excluding the GASB 68 and GASB 75 impact, the University's unrestricted net position increased $2.3 million for a total of
$160.6 million. In fiscal year 2020, excluding the GASB 68 and GASB 75 impact, the University's net position decreased

$7.1 million for a total of $158.3 million. In fiscal year 2019, excluding the GASB 68 and GASB 75 impact, the University's
unrestricted net position increased $28.2 million for at total of $165.4 million. In fiscal year 2018, excluding the GASB 68

and GASB 75 impact, the University's unrestricted net position increased $0.6 million for a total of $137.2 million.

Per annual CAFR

FY2021 FY2020 FY2019 FY2018

Net investment in capital assets $ 256,273,784 $ 273,745547 $ 290,960,785 $ 318,787,398
Restricted

Nonexpendable 93,450,804 92,884,333 91,997,286 91,314,812

Expendable 172,064,021 119,736,905 113,211,622 99,701,424
Unrestricted (exclusive of GASB 68 and 75 liabilities) 160,633,515 158,323,021 165,423,830 137,210,133
Unrestricted (including GASB 68 and 75 liabilities) (908,652,076) (868,396,874) (841,631,771) (812,662,227)

Total net position

$ (226,229,952) $ (223,707,068) $ (180,038,248) $ (165,648,460)
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Medical University of South Carolina
Summary of Current Debt Obligations

($$ in thousands)

Outstanding &

Original Authorized as of
Issue Purpose 30-Jun-2022
State Institution Bonds (SIB)
SIB 2011D 18,950 Deferred maintenance projects -
SIB 2012B refunding 12,645 Refunding SIB 2001C, 2003D, & 2003J 1,645
SIB 2016D 30,095 Refunding SIB 2001C, 2003D, & 2003J 18,135
Refunding SIB 2011D & to fund construction
SIB 2021D 23,415 of capital projects 22,205
8 146150
Current SIB Debt Authorized and Issued 41,985
Construction of College Health
Notes Payable - JEDA $ 32,985 Health Profession facilities 5,450
Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017
2017 $ 25,115 Refunding of Higher Ed Revenue Bonds 17,900
Energy Performance Note Payable
EPNP 02-27-19 $ 30,000 Energy Savings 29,052
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The MUSC Affiliated Organizations

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Twelve (12) Month Period Ending June 30, 2022

Operating Revenues
Student Tuition and Fees
Federal Grants and Contracts
State Grants and Contracts
Local Government Grants and Contracts
Nongovernmental Grants and Contracts
Sales and Services to Hospital Authority

Sales and Services of Educational and Other Activities

Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises
Interest Income
Other Operating Revenues

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Compensation and Employee Benefits
Pension Benefits
OPEB Expense
Services and Supplies
Utilities
Scholarships and Fellowships
Refunds to Grantors
Interest Expense
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (LosS)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
State Appropriations
State Appropriations - MUHA
Gifts and Grants Received
Investment Income
Interest Expense
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets
Transfers From (To) Other State Agencies
Other Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), net

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Income (Loss) Before Other Revenues,
Expenses, Gains, Losses and Transfers
Capital Appropriations
Capital Grants and Gifts
Additions to Permanent Endowments
Transfers From (To) MUSC Physicians (UMA)
Transfers From (To) AHEC
Transfers From (To) CHS Development
Transfers From (To) Facilities Corporation

Increase (Decrease) In Net Position

70of7

Area Health CHS
Education Development
Consortium Company

- $ -

867,031 -
156,568 -
50,000 -
130,000 -

- 278,100

67,691 -
1,271,290 278,100
3,009,641 -
10,056,574 4
13,605 -

- 170,923

- 156,349

13,079,820 327,276
(11,808,530) (49,176)
11,353,530 -
11,353,530 -
(455,000) (49,176)
1,958 -

- 7,158
(453,042) $ (42,018)




AMENDED RESOLUTION

REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING TWENTY-
FIVE MILLION TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($25,225,000) OF GENERAL OBLIGATION STATE
INSTITUTION BONDS FOR THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTH CAROLINA PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 107, TITLE 59,
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED

Adopted by
BOARD OF TRUSTEES

OF
THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA

August 12, 2022
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AMENDED RESOLUTION

REQUESTING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING TWENTY-
FIVE MILLION TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND
DOLLARS ($25,225,000) OF GENERAL OBLIGATION STATE
INSTITUTION BONDS FOR THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTH CAROLINA PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 107, TITLE 59,
CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF
SOUTH CAROLINA IN A MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

SECTION 1. Findings of Fact. As an incident to the adoption of this Amended Resolution, the
Board of Trustees of The Medical University of South Carolina (the “Board of Trustees”), the governing
body of The Medical University of South Carolina (the “University”) hereby finds and determines as
follows:

(a) This Amended Resolution is adopted by the Board of Trustees pursuant to Title
59, Chapter 107, Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Enabling Act”).

(b) Pursuant to Section 59-107-40 of the Enabling Act, the Board of Trustees is
authorized to make application to the South Carolina State Fiscal Accountability Authority (the
“State Authority”) for the issuance of General Obligation State Institution Bonds (“State
Institution Bonds™), the proceeds of which may be used: (i) to construct, equip and furnish a six-
story, approximately 89,000 square foot building and related improvements on the University’s
campus (the “Project,” as such term is more particularly described in paragraph (c) of this Section
1); (ii) to reimburse the University for expenses incurred in anticipation of the issuance of such
bonds; and (iii) to pay the costs of issuance of such bonds.

(©) The Board of Trustees has determined that, in order to accommodate the growth
in student numbers and programs, the need for the Project exists, and is anticipated to be used for
general University purposes and by the University’s College of Health Professions, and will
include space for classrooms, office and support space for University faculty and staff, research
space, as well as an elevated pedestrian bridge connecting the building to the existing
Bioengineering building.

(d) The University estimates that the total cost of the Project will be approximately
$50,000,000. In order to fund a portion of the projected costs of the Project, and taking into
account certain other sources, the Board of Trustees desires to make application to the State
Authority to issue not exceeding Twenty-Five Million Two Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand
Dollars ($25,225,000) aggregate principal amount of General Obligation State Institution Bonds
(Issued on Behalf of The Medical University of South Carolina) of the State of South Carolina
(the “Bonds”) pursuant to the Enabling Act, on the basis that a definite and immediate need exists
for constructing and furnishing the Project, and therefore for issuing such Bonds. The proceeds of
the Bonds shall be applied to defray a portion of the costs of the Project, reimburse the University
for expenses incurred in anticipation of the issuance of the Bonds, and to pay the costs of issuance
of the Bonds.

(e) Accordingly, this Amended Resolution is adopted pursuant to Section 59-107-40
of the Enabling Act, in order to make formal application to the State Authority for the issuance of



the Bonds, the proceeds of which will be used for the purposes set forth in paragraph (d) of this
Section 1.

SECTION 2.  Application for Issuance of State Institution Bonds. The Board of Trustees
hereby makes formal application to the State Authority for funds through the issuance of the Bonds
pursuant to the provisions of the Enabling Act, in order that the proceeds thereof may be used for the
purposes set forth in paragraph (d) of Section 1 hereof.

SECTION 3. Tuition Fees Received in Previous Fiscal Year. Based on tuition fees as defined
in the Enabling Act and as described in Section 4 below, for fiscal year July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2022, tuition fees available to pay debt service on State Institution Bonds amounted to the sum
of $15,185,306.

SECTION 4.  Current Schedule of Tuition Fees. The schedule of tuition fees, as defined in the
Enabling Act and as now in effect at the University, is as set forth as Exhibit A to this Amended
Resolution, which schedule is hereby reaffirmed and approved.

SECTION 5.  Maturity Schedule for Bonds. The suggested maturity schedule for the Bonds
requested to be issued pursuant to this Amended Resolution is set forth as Exhibit B to this Amended
Resolution. Said Exhibit B assumes that the principal amount of the Bonds will be $25,225,000.

SECTION 6. Debt Service on Outstanding State Institution Bonds. A statement showing all
State Institution Bonds heretofore issued on behalf of the University now outstanding and not defeased,
together with the annual interest and principal payments to become due thereon, is set forth as Exhibit C
to this Amended Resolution.

SECTION 7. Debt Service on Outstanding Bonds Including Bonds Authorized Hereby. A
table showing debt service on all State Institution Bonds to be outstanding for the University following
the issuance of the Bonds (at an assumed principal amount of the Bonds of $25,225,000 and at prevailing
rates of interest) is set forth as Exhibit D to this Amended Resolution. Upon the issuance of the Bonds,
the maximum annual debt service on all State Institution Bonds secured by tuition fees of the University
may not be greater than 90% of the tuition fees received by the University for the preceding fiscal year.

A calculation establishing the right of the University to seek the issuance of Bonds to the extent
set forth in this Amended Resolution is set forth as Exhibit E to this Amended Resolution.

SECTION 8. Request for Issuance of Bonds and Bond Anticipation Notes.

(a) The State Authority is requested to make the findings required by the Enabling Act and to
request the Governor and the State Treasurer to provide for the issuance of the Bonds by the State of
South Carolina (the “State™). If the State Treasurer should determine that all or a portion of the proceeds
needed to defray the costs of the Project should be funded by the issuance of bond anticipation notes (the
“Notes”) pursuant to Chapter 17, Title 11 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the
“BAN Act”) rather than the Bonds and that the issuance of the Notes would be in the best interest of the
State under prevailing market conditions or, in light of the subsequent borrowings necessary to finance
the completion of the Project, would be more efficient than issuing Bonds at this time, the Governor and
the State Treasurer are further requested to effect the issuance of Notes pursuant to the BAN Act. If
Notes are issued and if, upon maturity thereof, the State Treasurer should determine that further issuance
of Notes rather than the Bonds would be in the best interest of the State under prevailing market
conditions, the Governor and the State Treasurer are requested to continue the issuance of Notes, in a



principal amount not to exceed $25,225,000 until the Governor and the State Treasurer determine to issue
the Bonds on the basis as aforesaid, and the Bonds are issued.

(b) The Board of Trustees hereby covenants and agrees that the University will, and hereby
directs the President and the Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the University to deposit and designate
sufficient tuition fees during each fiscal year to satisfy the requirement that debt service on all State
Institution Bonds issued on behalf of the University (including the Bonds herein requested) shall not
exceed 90% of such tuition fees so deposited and designated. The President and the Secretary of the
Board of Trustees are hereby authorized to certify the amount so deposited and designated to the State
Authority. In the event this application is submitted to the State Authority, or the Bonds herein requested
are delivered, in a fiscal year subsequent to the fiscal year in which this Amended Resolution is adopted,
the request herein made is expressly conditioned on such certification being made and showing that debt
service on all State Institution Bonds issued on behalf of the University (including the Bonds herein
requested) does not exceed 90% of such tuition fees so deposited and designated.

SECTION 9. Covenant to Impose Tuition Fees Sufficient to Pay Bonds. The Board of
Trustees hereby covenants and agrees that the schedule of tuition fees now in effect at the University will
be revised from time to time and whenever necessary in order to provide the annual principal and interest
requirements of all State Institution Bonds now or hereafter to be outstanding, which have been or will be
issued on behalf of the University.

SECTION 10. Tax Covenants. To the extent that the State Authority provides for the issuance
of Bonds on a federally tax-exempt basis, the University will covenant as follows:

(a) Federal Guarantee Prohibition. The University shall not take any action or permit or
suffer any action to be taken if the result of the same would be to cause the Bonds to be “federally
guaranteed” within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), and regulations promulgated thereunder (the “Regulations”).

(b) Private Business Limitation. The University shall ensure that (i) not in excess of 10% of
the amount actually or constructively received from the sale of the Bonds, together with the investment
earnings thereon (“Net Proceeds”), is used directly or indirectly in a trade or business carried on by a
natural person or in any activity carried on by a person other than a natural person, excluding, however,
use by a state or local governmental unit and use as a member of the general public but not use by the
federal government of the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof (“Private
Business Use”), if, in addition, the payment of more than ten percent of the principal or ten percent of the
interest due on the Bonds during the term thereof is, under the terms thereof or any underlying
arrangement, directly or indirectly, secured by any interest in property used or to be used for a Private
Business Use or in payments in respect of property used or to be used for a Private Business Use or is to
be derived from payments, whether or not to the State, in respect of property or borrowed money used or
to be used for a Private Business Use; and (ii) in the event that both (a) in excess of five percent of the
Net Proceeds are used for a Private Business Use, and (b) an amount in excess of five percent of the
principal or five percent of the interest due on the Bonds during the term thereof is, under the terms
thereof or any underlying arrangement, directly or indirectly, secured by any interest in property used or
to be used for said Private Business Use or in payments in respect of property used or to be used for said
Private Business Use or is to be derived from payments, whether or not to the State, in respect of property
or borrowed money used or to be used for said Private Business Use, then said excess over said five
percent of Net Proceeds used for a Private Business Use shall be used for a Private Business Use related
to the governmental use of a portion of the facilities financed with the proceeds of the Bonds and shall not
exceed the proceeds used for the governmental use of the portion of the undertaking to which such Private
Business Use is related.




(@) Private Loan Limitation. The University shall ensure that not in excess of the lesser of (i)
$5,000,000 or (ii) 5% of the Net Proceeds will be used, directly or indirectly, to make or finance a loan to
persons other than state or local government units.

(d) No Arbitrage. The University represents that it does not expect any portion of the
proceeds of the Bonds to be used directly or indirectly to acquire higher yielding investments, or to
replace funds which were used directly or indirectly to acquire higher yielding investments for other than
a “temporary period” as defined in the Code and the Regulations. The University further covenants that it
will not intentionally use any portion of the proceeds of the Bonds to acquire higher yielding investments
or to replace funds which were used directly or indirectly to acquire higher yielding investments. In
making the foregoing representation and covenant, the University understands and intends that words or
phrases contained herein have meanings provided therefor under Section 148 of the Code and under the
Regulations.

SECTION 11. Secretary to Present Resolution to State Authority. The Secretary to the Board of
Trustees is hereby directed to present a certified copy of this Amended Resolution, together with the
Exhibits and any certification required by Section 8 to this Amended Resolution, to the State Authority as
evidence of the Board of Trustees’ formal request for the issuance of the Bonds on behalf of the
University, and as evidence that all conditions precedent to the issuance of such Bonds have been met
prior to the issuance of the Bonds. The date of application for purposes of the Enabling Act shall be such
date as this Amended Resolution and any certificate required by Section 8 hereof is submitted to the State
Authority.

SECTION 12. Execution of Closing Documents and Certificates. The Chairman of and the
Secretary to the Board of Trustees, and all other officers of the University, are fully authorized and
empowered to take such further action and to execute and deliver such closing documents as may be
necessary and proper in order to complete the borrowing herein authorized and the action of such officers
or any one or more of them in executing and delivering any of such documents in such form as he or they
shall approve, is hereby fully authorized. In particular, such officers of the University are authorized to
abide by covenants made by or on behalf of the State Authority in connection herewith relating to
Sections 9 and 10 hereof or relating to Rule 15¢2-12 of the United States Securities and Exchange
Commission or relating to Section 11-1-85 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

SECTION 13. Reimbursement Declaration. The University hereby confirms its intention to
reimburse itself for a portion of the costs of the Project with the proceeds of the Bonds or the Notes, as the
case may be, requested to be issued herein. To that end, the Board of Trustees determines and declares as
follows:

(a) no funds from any sources other than the Bonds or the Notes, as the case may be, are, or
are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis or otherwise set aside by the
University pursuant to the budget or financial policies of the University for the financing of the portion of
the costs of constructing, equipping and furnishing the Project to be funded with the Bonds or the Notes,
as the case may be;

(b) the University reasonably expects that all or a portion of the expenditures incurred for the
Project and the issuance of the Bonds or the Notes, as the case may be, will be paid prior to the issuance
of the Bonds or the Notes, as the case may be;

(© the University intends and reasonably expects to reimburse itself for all such expenditures
paid by it with respect to the Project prior to the issuance of the Bonds or the Notes, as the case may be,



from the proceeds of the Bonds or the Notes, as the case may be, and such intention is consistent with the
budgetary and financial circumstances of the University;

(d) all of the costs to be paid or reimbursed from the proceeds of the Bonds or the Notes, as
the case may be, will be for costs incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds or the Notes, as
the case may be, or will, at the time of payment thereof, be properly chargeable to the capital account of
the Project (or would be so chargeable with a proper election) under general federal income tax
principles; and

(e) this Amended Resolution shall constitute a declaration of official intent under United
States Department of the Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2.

SECTION 14. Law and Place of Enforcement of this Amended Resolution. This Amended
Resolution shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State. All suits and
actions arising out of this Amended Resolution shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in
the State.

SECTION 15. Effect of Section Headings. The heading or titles of the several Sections hereof
are solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation or
effect of this Amended Resolution.

SECTION 16. Repeal of Inconsistent Resolutions. All resolutions of the Board of Trustees, and
any part of any resolution, inconsistent with this Amended Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of
such inconsistency.

SECTION 17. Effectiveness of this Amended Resolution. This Amended Resolution shall
become effective upon its adoption and except as provided in the last sentence of this Section 17, shall
amend in its entirety the Resolution approving the issuance of Not Exceeding Twenty Million Dollars
($20,000,000) of General Obligation State Institution Bonds adopted by the Board of Trustees on April 8,
2022 (the “Original Resolution”). The University’s reimbursement declaration under Section 13 of the
Original Resolution shall survive the amendment of the Original Resolution.

Done in meeting duly assembled this 12 day of August 2022.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MEDICAL
UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA

(SEAL)

Chairman
Attest:

Secretary



EXHIBIT A

THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SCHEDULE OF TUITION FEES IN EFFECT FOR PURPOSES OF
SECTIONS 59-107-10 ET SEQ., CODE OF LAWS OF
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED

Set forth below are the tuition and fees charged by each of the Academic Division's Colleges for
resident and non-resident students for the 2022-2023 academic year (excluding the summer term)
on an annual basis (except as shown):

In-State! Out-of-State'
Dental Medicine
Doctor of Dental Medicine $17,150 $30,000
Dental Scientist Training Program 7,905 7,905
Master of Science in Dentistry - Endodontics 20,338 20,338
Master of Science in Dentistry — Periodontics 3,218 3,902
Master of Science in Dentistry - Orthodontics 3,218 3,902
Master of Science in Dentistry — Digital Dentistry 20,167 20,167
Graduate Studies
Master of Science in Biomedical Sciences $6,752 $9,484
Master of Science in Clinical Research 6,887 10,538
Master of Science in Medical Sciences 7,025 10,538
Ph.D. Program 7,954 10,686
Health Professions
Bachelor of Science in Healthcare Studies $4,900 $4,900
Cardiovascular Perfusion 8,149 12,831
Master in Extracorporeal Science 6,000
Master in Genetic Counseling 9,000 12,831
Doctor of Nurse Anesthesia Practice - Post-Masters 7,724 7,956
Doctor of Nurse Anesthesia Practice - Post-Baccalaureate 7,724 11,397
Master in Health Administration-Executive 8,525 9,682
Master in Health Administration-Residential 8,525 12,828
Master of Science in Health Informatics 8,525 8,525
Master of Science in Speech Pathology 8,349 12,465
Master of Science in Physical Assistant Studies 8,274 14,787
Doctor of Health Administration — Health Professional 10,290 10,290
Doctor of Health Administration - Health Administrator 10,290 10,290
Doctor of Health Administration —Interprofessional 6,958 6,958
Doctor of Health Administration- Information Systems 6,958 6,958
Ph. D. in Health and Rehabilitation Science 6,202 6,569
Doctor of Physical Therapy 8,142 12,280
Doctor of Occupational Therapy 8,346 12,465
Medicine
First Year $12,500 $22,283
Second Year 10,800 19,333
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In-State! Out-of-State'

Third Year 14,533 24,000

Fourth Year 14,122 25,826

Master of Public Health 6,752 10,538
Nursing

Undergraduate-BSN $ 7,811 $14,092

Undergraduate-RN-BSN 5,480 5,926

Graduate — DNP 8,116 10,542

Graduate & Ph.D. 8,116 10,332
Pharmacy

Doctor of Pharmacy-First, Second, Third Years $13,413 $13,413

Doctor of Pharmacy-Fourth Year 11,691 11,691

International Doctor of Pharmacy-First, 20,208

Second, Third Years

International Doctor of Pharmacy-Fourth Year 17,505

Doctor of Pharmacy/Master of Science in Health Informatics
(PharmD/MSHI) — Second & Third Year

Fall Term 18,603 19,311

Spring Term 16,008 16,362

— Fourth Year 14,286 14,640

Graduate Certificate Program in Clinical Pharmacy 55,125 55,125

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the amount of receipts designated as tuition for state institution bonds
purposes was not less than the sum of $15,185,306. The tuition and fees generated for the 2022 summer term are not
included.

The maximum principal and interest debt service payment prior to the issuance contemplated herein is $4,789,075,
which occurs in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

The maximum principal and interest debt service payment after the issuance contemplated herein is anticipated to be
$6,703,862, which is anticipated to occur in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

! All tuition per semester unless otherwise noted
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EXHIBIT B

THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
PRO-FORMA DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS OF
NOT EXCEEDING $25,225,000 STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
GENERAL OBLIGATION STATE INSTITUTION BONDS,
COMPUTED AT PREVAILING RATES OF INTEREST

New Issue Debt Service*

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total Debt Service
June 30, 2023 $ 585,000 $ 636,022 $ 1,221,022
June 30, 2024 935,000 985,587 1,920,587
June 30, 2025 960,000 959,781 1,919,781
June 30, 2026 990,000 931,941 1,921,941
June 30, 2027 1,020,000 902,340 1,922,340
June 30, 2028 1,050,000 870,924 1,920,924
June 30, 2029 1,085,000 836,904 1,921,904
June 30, 2030 1,120,000 800,448 1,920,448
June 30, 2031 1,160,000 762,032 1,922,032
June 30, 2032 1,200,000 721,200 1,921,200
June 30, 2033 1,245,000 678,000 1,923,000
June 30, 2034 1,290,000 629,818 1,919,818
June 30, 2035 1,345,000 577,186 1,922,186
June 30, 2036 1,400,000 520,158 1,920,158
June 30, 2037 1,460,000 458,978 1,918,978
June 30, 2038 1,530,000 393,716 1,923,716
June 30, 2039 1,595,000 324,101 1,919,101
June 30, 2040 1,670,000 250,412 1,920,412
June 30, 2041 1,750,000 171,922 1,921,922
June 30, 2042 1,835,000 88,447 1,923,447

Total $ 25,225,000 $ 12,499,912 37,724,912

* Preliminary, subject to change.
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EXHIBIT C

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
ON ALL STATE INSTITUTION BONDS
ISSUED BY THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
ON BEHALF OF
THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA

Existing Debt Service

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total Debt Service
June 30, 2023 $ 3,040,000 $ 1,749,075 $ 4,789,075
June 30, 2024 3,170,000 1,613,275 4,783,275
June 30, 2025 2,445,000 1,475,650 3,920,650
June 30, 2026 2,565,000 1,353,400 3,918,400
June 30, 2027 2,705,000 1,225,150 3,930,150
June 30, 2028 2,835,000 1,089,900 3,924,900
June 30, 2029 2,985,000 948,150 3,933,150
June 30, 2030 3,105,000 824,900 3,929,900
June 30, 2031 3,240,000 696,350 3,936,350
June 30, 2032 2,190,000 561,950 2,751,950
June 30, 2033 2,270,000 480,850 2,750,850
June 30, 2034 2,355,000 396,550 2,751,550
June 30, 2035 2,440,000 308,900 2,748,900
June 30, 2036 2,530,000 217,900 2,747,900
June 30, 2037 985,000 123,300 1,108,300
June 30, 2038 1,010,000 93,750 1,103,750
June 30, 2039 1,040,000 63,450 1,103,450
June 30, 2040 1,075,000 32,250 1,107,250

Total $ 41,985,000 $ 13,254,750  $ 55,239,750
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EXHIBIT D

SCHEDULE SHOWING PRO-FORMA TOTAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS OF
ALL GENERAL OBLIGATION STATE INSTITUTION BONDS
ISSUED BY THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
ON BEHALF OF
THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
INCLUDING THE PROPOSED ISSUE OF
TWENTY-FIVE MILLION TWO HUNDRED TWENTY-FIVE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($25,225,000)

OF GENERAL OBLIGATION STATE INSTITUTION BONDS

COMPUTED AT PREVAILING RATES OF INTEREST

Combined Debt Service*

Fiscal Year Ending Principal Interest Total Debt Service
June 30, 2023 $ 3,625,000 $ 2,385,097 $ 6,010,097
June 30, 2024 4,105,000 2,598,862 6,703,862
June 30, 2025 3,405,000 2,435,431 5,840,431
June 30, 2026 3,555,000 2,285,341 5,840,341
June 30, 2027 3,725,000 2,127,490 5,852,490
June 30, 2028 3,885,000 1,960,824 5,845,824
June 30, 2029 4,070,000 1,785,054 5,855,054
June 30, 2030 4,225,000 1,625,348 5,850,348
June 30, 2031 4,400,000 1,458,382 5,858,382
June 30, 2032 3,390,000 1,283,150 4,673,150
June 30, 2033 3,515,000 1,158,850 4,673,850
June 30, 2034 3,645,000 1,026,368 4,671,368
June 30, 2035 3,785,000 886,086 4,671,086
June 30, 2036 3,930,000 738,058 4,668,058
June 30, 2037 2,445,000 582,278 3,027,278
June 30, 2038 2,540,000 487,466 3,027,466
June 30, 2039 2,635,000 387,551 3,022,551
June 30, 2040 2,745,000 282,662 3,027,662
June 30, 2041 1,750,000 171,922 1,921,922
June 30, 2042 1,835,000 88,447 1,923,447

Total $ 67,210,000 $ 25,754,662 $ 92,964,662

* Preliminary, subject to change.
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EXHIBIT E

THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
PROOF SHOWING COMPLIANCE WITH
TITLE 59, CHAPTER 107, CODE OF LAWS OF
SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED

Aggregate of tuition fees received by the University as $15,185,306
of June 30, 2022

Multiplied by 90%

Produces $13,666,775

Maximum annual debt service on all State Institution $ 6,703,862

Bonds of the University (including the proposed
issue of not exceeding Twenty-Five Million Two
Hundred Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars
($25,225,000) General Obligation State Institution
Bonds issued on behalf of the University)
Margin $ 6,962,913

Calculated as of August 12, 2022
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UNAUDITED

Operating revenues:
Net clinical service revenue
Supplemental medicaid
Other operating revenue
Intercompany transfers
Purchased services
Grant salary reimb. from MUSC

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits
MUSCP reimb. for education and research
Supplies
Contractual services
Facility cost and equipment
Professional liability insurance
Depreciation
Meals and travel
Other expenses
Faculty and staff recruitment
Donations - transfer to MUSCF
MUSCP corporate shared services

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)
Operating margin

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Provider Relief Funds
MUSCP reimb. for education and research
Investment income
Interest expense
Rental income
Rent expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets
Total Nonoperating revenue (expenses)

Change in net position
Net margin

Notes:

MUSC Physicians and Carolina Family Care, Inc.
(A Component Unit of MUSC)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

MUSC Physicians Other includes other Colleges (Nursing CoHP, Dental), Presidents Fund, Rental Properties and Investment Account
Carolina Family Care, Inc. Other includes Grace Internal Medicine, Institutional Advancement, and MHA Participant Distribution

MUSC Physicians Carolina Family Care, Inc. Total
College Carolina Family
of Medicine Corporate  Ambulatory Care Other Care Primary Care Other Total Total Total
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Flex Budget Variance
$ 431,418,209 1,501,359 $ - $ 2758107 $ 24221670 $ 1,110,524 S 461,009,869 $ 444362714 $ 16,647,155
52,402,841 - - - 3,200,000 - 55,602,841 59,774,134 (4,171,293)
5,334,223 6,728,997 2,556 8,336,647 4,547,866 1,057,157 28,348,345 17,895,743 10,452,602
(125,694,622) 33,840,381 87,650,436 4,203,805 - - - - -
106,812,158 1,880,203 (4,366,562) 1,204,100 462,299 4,676,948 112,593,302 111,323,961 1,269,341
15,912,482 - - 59,907 - - 15,972,389 16,916,871 (944,483)
486,185,291 43,950,941 83,286,430 16,562,566 32,431,835 6,844,629 673,526,746 650,273,424 23,253,322
361,868,431 37,475,706 29,031,758 7,769,829 21,013,224 5,213,867 462,648,847 454,551,613 (8,097,234)
87,840,006 - - 2,457,252 - - 90,297,258 90,813,896 516,638
4,451,988 507,885 39,527,082 23,011 2,749,967 7,075 47,613,509 48,346,154 732,646
3,821,096 8,166,187 1,796,235 1,311,671 1,410,690 1,295,489 19,289,466 18,785,358 (504,107)
707,864 1,180,206 9,850,512 427,852 2,164,328 166,467 14,625,191 14,115,718 (509,472)
7,830,416 34,788 377 1,123 424,529 77,669 8,368,902 9,377,255 1,008,354
- 167,887 3,564,975 600,338 312,293 - 5,614,181 6,233,381 619,200
2,323,316 177,926 40,048 224,472 16,492 16,075 2,798,384 3,618,694 820,310
1,616,849 3,321,925 12,308 108,964 588,740 7,195 5,655,980 3,858,798 (1,797,182)
725,165 192,991 38 586,978 14,746 - 1,519,919 929,507 (590,412)
2,955,100 - - - - - 2,955,100 725,000 (2,230,100)
- - - - 2,166,948 19,937 2,186,885 2,385,570 198,685
474,140,231 51,225,503 83,823,332 13,511,489 30,861,957 6,803,773 663,573,621 653,740,944 (9,832,677)
12,045,060 (7,274,562) (536,901) 3,051,077 1,569,878 40,855 9,953,125 (3,467,521) 13,420,646
2.5% (16.6%) (0.6%) 18.4% 4.8% 0.6% 1.5% (0.5%)
- 1,886,704 - - 167,297 - 2,054,001 - 2,054,001
(10,000,000) - - - - - (10,000,000) - (10,000,000)
(637,412) 4,522,946 - (16,909,547) 389 - (13,023,623) 4,712,902 (17,736,525)
- (320,447) - (1,583,300) (13,003) (9,450) (2,983,916) (3,064,416) 80,500
- 219,703 511,901 6,679,750 53,173 - 7,464,527 7,320,139 144,388
- - - (1,476,204) - - (1,476,204) (1,476,204) -
- 965,655 25,000 2,000 (60,175) - 932,481 (1,077,813) 2,010,294
(10,637,412) 7,274,562 536,901 (13,287,302) 147,682 (9,450) (17,032,735) 6,414,607 (23,447,342)
1,407,649 - s - $ (10,236,225) S 1,717,560 S 31,405 S (7,079,610) $ 2,947,086 S (10,026,696)
0.3% 0.0% 0.0% (61.8%) 5.3% 0.5% (1.1%) 0.5%



Medical University of South Carolina Physicians
Executive Summary
For the twelve-month period ending June 30, 2022

Charges:
e YTD-6% over budget and 10% over last year
e Month of June: 8% over budget and 2% over last year
e Top 5 clinical departments: Pathology and Lab Medicine, Family Medicine, Anesthesiology,
OB/GYN, Medicine
e Bottom 5 clinical departments: Otolaryngology, Emergency Medicine, Ophthalmology, Radiation
Oncology, Dermatology

Payments:
e YTD-5% over budget and 10% over last year
e Month of June: 16% over budget and 8% over last year
e 35 Daysin AR and $78 per wRVU

Income/(Loss):
e $8.3M Operating Income; 1.3% Operating Margin
0 S$5.8M favorable variance to fixed budget

*  $26.9M favorable net clinical service revenue

= ($4.2M) unfavorable supplemental Medicaid

= $3.6M favorable other operating revenue

= ($18.5M) unbudgeted Z incentive accrual

= ($2.2M) unfavorable unbudgeted MUSC Foundation transfer

e ($8.8M) Net Loss; (1.4%) Net Margin
0 ($17.9M) unfavorable variance to fixed budget
* ($31.0M) unrealized/realized loss on investments
*  ($10.0M) transfer for College of Medicine Building
= $13.0M Allianz Settlement
*  $1.9M Provider Relief funding
= $2.0M favorable gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets — sale of Whitfield Tract

Balance Sheet:
e Days cash on hand: 282 days and $335.6M
e Currentratio: 4.7
e Net Position: $423.6M; decreased by $8.8M compared to June 2021
e Assets decreased by (525M) compared to June 2021
0 ($18M) net unrealized/realized loss on investments
0 ($6.0M) decrease in Land due to the sale of Whitfield Tract
e Liabilities decreased by $16.3M compared to June 2021
O S5.2M decrease in Due to MUSC Health Alliance
O S4.0M decrease in Bonds payable
0 S4.9M improvement in Swap fair value

Pension:
e YTD expense: $37.6M; increased by 6.7% compared to YTD June 2022



MUSC Physicians
(A Component Unit of MUSC)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year To Date Prior Year To Date
Actual Flex Budget Variance Var % Fixed Budget Variance Actual
Operating revenues:
Net clinical service revenue $ 435,677,675 S 421,317,991 $ 14,359,685 3% $ 408,769,412 $ 26,908,263 S 404,100,631
Supplemental medicaid 52,402,841 56,574,134 (4,171,293) (7%) 56,574,134 (4,171,293) 61,552,958
Other operating revenue 20,402,424 10,867,205 9,535,219 88% 10,867,205 9,535,219 11,755,063
MUHA reimb. for ambulatory and revenue cycle 2,340,898 2,420,717 (79,819) (3%) 2,420,717 (79,819) 6,636,715
Purchased services 107,454,056 108,207,672 (753,616) (1%) 108,824,803 (1,370,747) 100,367,121
Grant salary reimb. from MUSC 15,972,389 16,916,871 (944,483) (6%) 16,916,871 (944,483) 17,721,640
Total operating revenues 634,250,282 616,304,590 17,945,692 3% 604,373,142 29,877,140 602,134,128
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 436,421,755 430,821,123 (5,600,632) (1%) 415,470,245 (20,951,511) 397,588,461
MUSCP reimb. for education and research 90,297,258 90,813,896 516,638 1% 90,813,896 516,638 83,959,108
Supplies 44,856,467 45,680,881 824,415 2% 43,978,632 (877,835) 41,547,951
Contractual services 16,583,287 16,640,323 57,036 0% 16,592,649 9,362 15,888,300
Facility cost and equipment 12,294,395 11,617,324 (677,072) (6%) 11,552,416 (741,979) 10,783,751
Professional liability insurance 7,866,704 8,868,899 1,002,195 11% 8,490,670 623,967 7,452,092
Depreciation 5,301,888 5,897,411 595,522 10% 5,897,411 595,522 5,778,225
Meals and travel 2,765,817 3,587,854 822,037 23% 3,457,515 691,698 787,720
Other expenses 5,060,046 3,912,600 (1,147,446) (29%) 3,895,954 (1,164,092) 4,265,171
Faculty and staff recruitment 1,505,173 927,642 (577,531) (62%) 927,642 (577,531) 678,131
Donations - transfer to MUSCF 2,955,100 725,000 (2,230,100) (308%) 725,000 (2,230,100) 2,310,250
Total operating expenses 625,907,891 619,492,953 (6,414,938) (1%) 601,802,030 (24,105,861) 571,039,160
Operating income (loss) 8,342,391 (3,188,363) 11,530,754 362% 2,571,113 5,771,279 31,094,968
Operating margin 1.3% (0.5%) 0.4% 5.2%
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Provider Relief Funds 1,886,704 - 1,886,704 100% - 1,886,704 -
MUSCP reimb. for education and research (10,000,000) - (10,000,000) (100%) - (10,000,000) -
Investment income (13,024,012) 4,712,902 (17,736,915) (376%) 4,712,902 (17,736,915) 43,546,986
Interest expense (2,961,464) (3,061,780) 100,316 3% (3,061,780) 100,316 (3,362,084)
Rental income 7,411,354 7,295,910 115,443 2% 7,295,910 115,443 7,383,843
Rent expense (1,476,204) (1,476,204) - 0% (1,476,204) - (1,503,265)
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 992,655 (1,000,000) 1,992,655 199% (1,000,000) 1,992,655 (46,614)
MUHA reimb. for equipment - GRTC - - - 0% - - 733,232
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (17,170,967) 6,470,828 (23,641,796) (365%) 6,470,828 (23,641,796) 46,752,099
Change in net position S (8,828,576) S 3,282,466 $ (12,111,042) (369%) $ 9,041,941 $ (17,870,517) S 77,847,067
Net margin (1.4%) 0.5% 1.5% 12.9%

Notes:

Other operating revenue includes $3.5M MHA participant distribution (unbudgeted), 52.4M ACO aAPM bonus received for MHA (unbudgeted),
$1.7M Non-compete Settlement (unbudgeted) and S1.5M Provost fund reimbursement from MUSC

Purchased services: MHA participant distribution to CFC and MUHA ($0.7M) and OneMUSC Project reimbursement to MUHA (50.5M)

Salary, wages and benefits: (518.5M) Z accrual unbudgeted, ($1.7M) deficit in MUSCP Health Plan, and (S1.3M) MHA participant distribution unbudgeted;
$1.4M Ambulatory underbudget

Facility cost and equipment: 50.2M West Campus roof repair over budget

Other expenses: ACO aAPM bonus (52.4M) transferred to MHA

Faculty recruitment fees related to Chief of Gastroenterology/Hepatology, Hollings Cancer Center Deputy Director & Program Co-Leader, and COM Dean

Investment income includes unrealized loss on investment of (S35M), Allianz settlement of S13M, realized gain of $4.5M and interest income of $4.9M

Gain on disposal of assets: S1M gain from sale of Whitfield Tract



MUSC Physicians

(A Component Unit of the Medical University of South Carolina)

UNAUDITED

Statement of Net Position

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments
Receivables:
Patient services - net of allowances for
contractual adjustments of $144,337,812
bad debts of $22,816,574
Due from the Medical University of South Carolina

Due from the Medical University Hospital Authority

Due from the Medical University Foundation
Due from Carolina Family Care, Inc.
Note receivable from CFC/MHP
Investment / Advancements consolidated CFC
Due from Comprehensive Psychiatric Services
Due from MCP
Due from MSV

Prepaid rent - MUSC Foundation

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Rental buildings under capital lease
Computer software
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Prepaid rent - MUSC Foundation

Other assets

Net OPEB Asset

Investment in partnerships

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred refunding cost
Deferred outflows-OPEB

Total deferred outflows

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows

Notes:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance
335,586,173 343,265,033 (7,678,860)
49,901,045 49,070,745 830,300

2,474,926 32,536,800 (30,061,875)
5,261,172 4,883,822 377,350
389,403 854,141 (464,738)
5,727,444 4,656,305 1,071,139
756,003 100,310 655,693
32,270,000 32,270,000 -
4,341 17,327 (12,986)
58,783 - 58,783
- 733,232 (733,232)
338,226 338,226 -
26,909,743 5,626,886 21,282,857
459,677,258 474,352,826 (14,734,352)
17,034,537 22,999,986 (5,965,449)
51,956,947 51,956,947 -
31,936,037 28,960,305 2,975,732
64,265,087 59,855,236 4,409,851
13,989,600 13,989,600 -
14,213,945 14,213,945 -
(97,161,208) (90,809,366) (6,351,843)
4,643,038 5,213,856 (570,818)
2,740,000 5,470,000 (2,730,000)
1,504,745 1,504,745 -
6,958,570 7,772,020 (813,450)
112,081,297 121,127,274 (9,045,977)
571,758,555 595,480,100 (23,780,329)
6,476,238 7,840,185 (1,363,947)
26,711 26,711 -
6,502,949 7,866,896 (1,363,947)
578,261,504 603,346,996 (25,085,492)

Cash and Investments: Unrealized Loss on investments (535.4M); additional R Transfers (S11.7M); COM cash collections overbudget S18.5M;

Allianz settlement S13M; Whitfield Tract sale $7.7M

Due from MUSC variance is due to receipt of FY21 Supplemental Medicaid payments received in FY22
Note receivable: S0.7M promissory note with CFC for repayment of lab equipment; final loan payment of (50.1M) from MHP

Due from MSV: Linac receivable of S0.7M reclassed to due from MUHA
Other current assets variance is due to FY22 Supplemental Medicaid accrual $23.5M

Land: S5.9M decrease is due to sale of Whitfield Tract

Furniture and equipment: S2.9M increase is due to capitalization of East MRI and WC Breast Imaging Center
Leasehold Improvements include new projects: ERP, Nexton, and Parkshore Renovations
Other Assets - (Noncurrent) decrease in collateral deposit for Swap

4



MUSC Physicians
(A Component Unit of the Medical University of South Carolina)

UNAUDITED

Statement of Net Position

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued payroll
Accrued payroll withholdings
Accrued pension contribution
Unapplied cash - patient services
Other accrued liabilities
Due to Medical University of South Carolina
Due to Medical University Hospital Authority
Due to MUSC Health Alliance
Accrued compensated absences
Capital leases
Bonds payable

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences
Capital leases
Bonds payable
Deferred inflows-OPEB
Fair value of derivative instruments

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted (deficit)

Total Net Position
Total Liabilities, Inflows & Net Position

Notes:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance
S 7,690,104 S 7,892,080 201,975
127,001 141,612 14,611
42,790,577 37,268,240 (5,522,338)
10,295,467 12,257,318 1,961,850
2,402,455 2,136,569 (265,885)
10,703,254 3,371,283 (7,331,971)
5,293,175 16,950,290 11,657,114
6,733 242,378 235,644
11,617,891 12,360,670 742,779
(438,172) 4,719,371 5,157,542
3,157,494 3,197,751 40,257
320,969 320,969 -
4,015,000 4,015,000 -
97,981,949 104,873,529 6,891,578
2,788,752 2,788,752 -
254,308 690,792 436,484
52,125,000 56,140,000 4,015,000
881,457 881,457 -
660,108 5,573,961 4,913,853
56,709,626 66,074,962 9,365,337
154,691,575 170,948,491 16,256,915
69,813,684 69,813,684 -
353,756,245 362,584,821 8,828,576
423,569,929 432,398,505 8,828,576
S 578,261,504 S 603,346,996 25,085,492

Accrued payroll FY22 balance includes Y and Z incentive accruals of $37.6M (salary + fringe)
Accrued payroll withholdings FY22 & FY21 balance includes FICA employer withholding being deferred (S3.2M of original balance remaining)

Other accrued liabilities change in balance due to Advanced Medicare Payments $11.8M (fully repaid in FY22)

Due to/from MHA: S4.7M transfer of CMIMI program funds

Rutledge Tower debt is approximately $52.1M, S51M JEDA Bond Balance and the swap valued at S0.7M



Carolina Family Care, Inc.

Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians & MUSC Health Partners
Executive Summary

For the twelve-month period ending June 30, 2022

Charges-CFC:
e YTD-15% over budget and 24% over last year
e Month of June: 18% over budget and 22% over last year

Payment-CFC:
e  YTD-2% over budget and 20% over last year
e Month of June: 11% over budget and 14% over last year
e 25 Daysin AR and $86 per wRVU

Income/(Loss):
e $1.6M Operating Income; 4.1% Net Margin
0 S$1.0M favorable variance to fixed budget
= $799K favorable net clinical service revenue
= $510K net favorable MUSC Health Alliance distribution
= $375K favorable salaries CFC Primary Care
= ($258K) unfavorable Grace Internal Medicine
»  ($183K) unfavorable Spine PM&R
e $1.7M Net Income; 4.1% Net Margin
0 S1.2M favorable variance to fixed budget
= $170K Provider Relief Funds

Balance Sheet:
e Currentratio: 0.71
e Net Position: (52.2M); increased by $1.8M compared to June 2021
e Assets decreased by ($5.4M) compared to June 2021
0 ($1.7M) decrease in cash and cash equivalents (payments to UMA)
0 (54.9M) decrease in receivables (decrease in RHN receivables)
0 S0.6M increase in Due from MCP (MCP leadership employed by CPCP)
0 S0.5M increase in Due from MSV (Modern Minds activity)
e Liabilities decreased by ($7.1M) compared to June 2021
0 ($5.7M) decrease in accrued payroll (removal of RHN payroll)
(51.6M) decrease in accrued payroll withholdings
$1.1M increase in Due to UMA
$0.7M increase in note payable to UMA (CFC lab equipment)
(50.7M) decrease in Due to MUSC Health Alliance

O O OO



Carolina Family Care, Inc.
(Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians and MUSC Health Partners)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

UNAUDITED
Fiscal Year To Date Prior Year To Date
Actual Flex Budget Variance Var % Fixed Budget Variance Actual
Operating revenues:
Net clinical service revenue $ 25,332,194 $ 23,044,723 $ 2,287,471 10% $ 24,532,758 $ 799,436 $ 21,792,912
Supplemental medicaid 3,200,000 3,200,000 - 0% 3,200,000 - 3,200,000
Other operating revenue 5,605,024 4,607,821 997,202 22% 4,607,821 997,202 5,158,795
Purchased services 5,139,247 3,116,289 2,022,958 65% 3,133,061 2,006,185 3,371,884
Total operating revenues 39,276,464 33,968,834 5,307,631 16% 35,473,640 3,802,824 33,523,592
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 26,227,092 23,730,489 (2,496,602) (11%) 24,226,551 (2,000,540) 21,886,639
Supplies 2,757,042 2,665,273 (91,769) (3%) 2,674,536 (82,506) 2,169,112
Contractual services 2,706,178 2,145,035 (561,143) (26%) 2,145,008 (561,171) 1,972,310
Depreciation 312,293 335,970 23,677 7% 335,970 23,677 264,025
Facility cost and equipment 2,330,795 2,498,395 167,600 7% 2,499,467 168,671 2,382,956
Professional liability insurance 502,198 508,356 6,158 1% 506,410 4,212 512,105
Meals and travel 32,567 30,840 (1,727) (6%) 31,357 (1,209) 21,899
Faculty and staff recruitment 14,746 1,865 (12,881) (691%) 1,865 (12,881) 4,755
MUSCP corporate shared services 2,186,885 2,385,570 198,685 8% 2,385,570 198,685 1,512,152
Other expenses 595,934 (53,802) (649,736)  (1208%) 103,386 (492,548) 586,805
Total operating expenses 37,665,730 34,247,992 (3,417,739) (10%) 34,910,120 (2,755,610) 31,312,758
Operating income (loss) 1,610,734 (279,158) 1,889,892 677% 563,520 1,047,214 2,210,834
Operating margin 4.1% (0.8%) 1.6% 6.6%
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Provider Relief Funds 167,297 - 167,297 100% - 167,297 558,053
Investment income 389 - 389 100% - 389 (88,593)
Interest expense (22,452) (2,636) (19,816) (752%) (2,636) (19,816) (6,443)
Rental income 53,173 24,228 28,945 119% 24,228 28,945 25,528
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets (60,175) (77,813) 17,639 23% (77,813) 17,639 -
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 138,232 (56,221) 194,453 346% (56,221) 194,453 488,546
Change in net position $ 1,748966 S  (335380) $ 2,084,346 621% $ 507,299 $ 1,241,667 $ 2,699,379
Net margin 4.5% (1.0%) 1.4% 8.1%

Notes:

Financial statements exclude RHN clinics due to MCP transition at 1/30/2022.

Net clinical service revenue overbudget: 5628K CFC Primary Care, S61K Centerspace, S59K Mt Pleasant Community PM&R and 538K East Cooper Radiology

Other operating revenue: SIM MHA participant distribution overbudget (unbudgeted) and $540K ACO aAPM bonus received for MHA (unbudgeted);
(S600K) CFC Primary Care underbudget

Purchased services: 5$1.3M MCP Funded Leadership overbudget (unbudgeted), 5564K Modern Minds overbudget (funded by MSV), and
$395K MUHA Midlands overbudget (unbudgeted); (5315K) MHA Funded Staffing underbudget

Salaries and benefits: ($1.3M) MCP Funded Leadership overbudget (unbudgeted), (S554K) Modern Minds overbudget (funded by MSV), and
($542K) MHA participant distribution overbudget (unbudgeted); $375K CFC Primary Care underbudget

Contractual services overbudget: S353K Grace Internal Medicine and 5186K Mt Pleasant Community PM&R (unbudgeted)

Other expenses: ACO aAPM bonus (S540K) transferred to MHA



Carolina Family Care, Inc.

Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians and MUSC Health Partners

UNAUDITED

Statement of Net Position

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:
Patient services - net of allowances for
contractual adjustments of $7,249,771
bad debts of $2,217,129
Due from the Medical University of South Carolina
Due from the Medical University Hospital Authority
Due from MCP
Due from MSV

Other current assets

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Furniture and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Computer software
Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Investment in partnerships

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

Notes:
Furniture and equipment variance due to purchase of lab equipment

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance
$ 4,144,560 $ 5,803,109 $ (1,658,549)
3,754,045 8,661,767 (4,907,722)
- 2,116 (2,116)
278,253 447,963 (169,710)
592,213 - 592,213
512,641 62,860 449,780
477,993 511,674 (33,680)
9,759,705 15,489,489 (6,321,997)
1,608,959 1,361,934 247,025
2,678,566 2,678,566 -
46,563 46,563 -
(2,410,506) (2,537,707) 127,201
209,000 209,000 -
2,132,581 1,758,355 374,226
$ 11,892,287 ¢ 17,247,843  $ (5,355,557)




Carolina Family Care, Inc.

Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians and MUSC Health Partners

UNAUDITED

Statement of Net Position

LIABILITIES
June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 Variance
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,092,713 S 848,229 (244,484)
Accrued payroll 665,876 6,364,259 5,698,383
Accrued payroll withholdings 958,090 2,511,633 1,553,543
Unapplied cash - patient services 1,046,790 817,291 (229,499)
Other accrued liabilities 524,931 846,910 321,979
Due to Medical University of South Carolina 30,397 24,235 (6,162)
Due to Medical University Hospital Authority 25,456 60,843 35,386
Due to MUHA - RHN / RHN Settlement 2,517,044 2,922,717 405,673
Due to UMA 5,727,444 4,656,305 (1,071,139)
Note Payable to UMA 756,003 100,310 (655,693)
Note Payable to MSV 408,169 200,751 (207,418)
Due to MUSC Health Alliance (510,273) 228,805 739,077
Accrued compensated absences 549,979 886,936 336,957
Total current liabilities 13,792,618 20,469,221 6,676,603
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences 295,129 723,048 427,919
Total noncurrent liabilities 295,129 723,048 427,919
Total liabilities 14,087,747 21,192,269 7,104,522
NET POSITION (2,195,460) (3,944,426) (1,748,966)
Total Liabilities, Inflows & Net Position S 11,892,287 $ 17,247,843 §$ 5,355,557
Notes:

Accounts payable FY22 balance includes corporate credit card payable S952K and accrued medical supplies S141K
Accrued payroll decrease due to payment of FY21 RHN wRVU bonuses in FY22 and reversal of RHN salary accruals
Accrued payroll withholdings FY22 and FY21 balance includes FICA Employer Withholding being deferred (1/2 of original balance remaining)
Other accrued liabilities change in balance due to FY22 reduction of Advanced Medicare S500K (fully repaid in FY22) and
MHA Participant Distribution accrual (§224K)
Note payable to UMA change in balance is due to promissory note of 743K for lab equipment and final UMA/MHP loan payment of (S100K)
Note payable to MSV: Line of credit was increased by $200K and fully disbursed in FY22
MUSC Health Alliance (MHA): MHA owes CFC for staffing $250K, CMIMI program fund transfer $229K, and
MHA Participant Distribution accrual $224K
Accrued compensated absences change due to MCP transition



Carolina Family Care, Inc.
(Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians and MUSC Health Partners)
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

Grace Internal Other Carolina CFC
UNAUDITED Medicine Entities Family Care Total
(1) (2) (3) Sum of (1)-(3)
Operating revenues:
Net clinical service revenue S 966,132 S 144,392 S 24,221,670 S 25,332,194
Supplemental medicaid - - 3,200,000 3,200,000
Other operating revenue - 1,057,157 4,547,866 5,605,024
Purchased services - 4,676,948 462,299 5,139,247
Total operating revenues 966,132 5,878,497 32,431,835 39,276,464
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits - 5,213,867 21,013,224 26,227,092
Supplies 216 6,859 2,749,967 2,757,042
Contractual services 1,103,462 192,027 1,410,690 2,706,178
Depreciation - - 312,293 312,293
Facility cost and equipment 89,382 77,085 2,164,328 2,330,795
Professional liability insurance - 77,669 424,529 502,198
Meals and travel - 16,075 16,492 32,567
Faculty and staff recruitment - - 14,746 14,746
MUSCP corporate shared services 19,323 614 2,166,948 2,186,885
Other expenses - 7,195 588,740 595,934
Total operating expenses 1,212,383 5,591,390 30,861,957 37,665,730
Operating income (loss) (246,251) 287,107 1,569,878 1,610,734
Operating margin (25.5%) 4.9% 4.8% 4.1%
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Provider Relief Funds - - 167,297 167,297
Investment income - - 389 389
Interest expense - (9,450) (13,003) (22,452)
Rental income - - 53,173 53,173
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets - - (60,175) (60,175)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) - (9,450) 147,682 138,232
Change in net position S (246,251) $ 277,657 S 1,717,560 $ 1,748,966
Net margin (25.5%) 4.7% 5.3% 4.5%
Notes:

Financial statements exclude RHN clinics due to MCP transition at 1/30/2022.

(1) Funding from MSV Line of credit in the amount of S0.4M has been received in FY21 and FY22;
accumulated fund balance of (5462K)

(2) Other non-Primary Care entities:

- $0.5M MHA Participant Distribution - $1.1M distributed, (50.5M) salaries and benefits

- (5.2M) Mt Pleasant Community PM&R operating loss

- Other column also includes the following entities which are fully funded: Tidelands Multispecialty, Hampton Regional,
Modern Minds, Charleston Cardiology, Centerspace, MCP Leadership, MHA Staffing and MUHA Midlands;
East Cooper Radiology and Tidelands Neurosciences (closed in FY21) includes run off collections
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Carolina Family Care, Inc.
(Including Carolina Primary Care Physicians and MUSC Health Partners)
Regional Health Network
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the 12 Month Period Ending - June 30, 2022

UNAUDITED Florence Marion Chester Lancaster RHC RHN Integ. Costs RHN Consol.
Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) Sum of (1)-(6)
Operating revenues:
Net clinical service revenue $ 24516671 $ 3,413,946 $ 1,925,707 $ 5,623,237 $ - s - $ 35,479,561
Supplemental medicaid 2,499,275 538,792 504,883 1,146,850 - - 4,689,799
Purchased services (1,048,649) 5,741 (14,918) 51,438 58,188 802,596 (145,605)
Total operating revenues 25,967,296 3,958,479 2,415,672 6,821,525 58,188 802,596 40,023,755
Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and benefits 30,956,507 4,281,708 1,647,331 9,035,188 4,900,408 672,110 51,493,253
Supplies 1,062,794 90,074 25,557 233,600 - 8,752 1,420,777
Contractual services 4,719,459 604,383 959,552 990,870 - 120,434 7,394,698
Facility cost and equipment 1,602,592 171,329 184,220 627,395 3,780 627 2,589,943
Professional liability insurance 977,358 226,845 112,754 382,450 331,559 - 2,030,967
Meals and travel 3,634 - - 2,476 - - 6,110
Faculty and staff recruitment 20,252 - - 1,948 - - 22,200
MUSCP corporate shared services 673,998 87,863 231,412 191,072 - - 1,184,345
Other expenses 59,014 21,856 2,530 9,170 - 674 93,243
Total operating expenses 40,075,609 5,484,058 3,163,356 11,474,169 5,235,747 802,596 66,235,535
Operating income (loss) (14,108,313) (1,525,579) (747,685) (4,652,644) (5,177,559) - (26,211,780)
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Provider Relief Funds 538,375 83,882 89,456 132,625 - - 844,338
Rental income 1,400 - - - - - 1,400
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 539,775 83,882 89,456 132,625 - - 845,738
RHN provider practice strategic support 13,568,539 1,441,697 658,228 4,520,019 - - 20,188,483
Salary reimbursement for RHCs - - - - 5,177,559 - 5,177,559
Change in net position $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

Notes:

RHN clinics transitioned to MICP at 1/30/2022.

Purchased services in operating revenues includes Medical Directorships, FCALL payments, other salary reimbursements

Salary Reimbursement for RHCs: Regional Health Clinics are fully reimbursed for salaries and other expenses by MUHA. Income is not recognized

but reimbursed directly to MUHA.
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FY2022 MUSCP Due to/Due From
As of 6/30/22

Outstanding

Balance Notes
1. MUSCP/MUHA
MUSCP due from MUHA $5,261,172 June recurring: $2.4M Epic Collections; $.6M Leadership costs; S.4M
RHN COM Salaries; $.3M Ambulatory; $.2M Revenue Cycle
MUSCP due to MUHA ($11,617,891) June recurring: $5.7M Epic Collections; $.8M IS costs; $1M Ambulatory
$.8M Billing agreements, $1.1M East MRI
Net Amount Due ($6,356,718)

2. MUSCP/MUSC
Net Amount Due $2,468,192 Balance consists of $.9M remaining FY21 STP accrual; $1.6M grant salary
reimbursement

3. CFC/MUHA
Net Amount Due $188,051 Balance consists of monthly recurring activity

4. CFC/MUHA - RHN

Total RHN accounts-Due from (to) MUHA ($2,517,044) Net Advance from MUHA for RHN expenses: includes AR Accrual
5. CFC/MUSC

Net Amount Due ($30,300) Balance consists of monthly recurring activity
6. MHP/MUHA

Net Amount Due S0
7. MHP/MUSC

Net Amount Due ($162) Balance consists of monthly recurring activity - Innovation Station
8. MSV

Net Amount Due $512,640 Modern Minds billing
9. MCP

Net Amount Due $553,649 Balance consists of monthly recurring activity
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FY2022 MUSCP Consolidated Approved Unbudgeted Expenses
As of 6/30/22

Unbudgeted Capital Projects Amount
Whitfield Tract S 1,000,000
Imaging Sectra PACS system 1,070,662
Notable Digital platform 544,861
Nexton MOB ultrasound machine 72,706
Various equipment under $50K 180,509
Total $ 2,868,738
Unbudgeted Operating Expenses Amount
OneMUSC S 1,250,000
Provost Office marketing efforts (fully funded) 800,000
Select Health Bonus 400,000
Emergency Department Chair search 173,000
Recruitment fees: Chief of Gastroenterology & Hepatology 133,000
Diversity Office support 105,699
Project Lego/Helix genomics initiative 83,000
Moncks Corner Pediatrics acquisition 80,000
HCC digital marketing tool (fully funded) 64,000
Total $ 3,088,699
Total FY22 Approved Unbudgeted Expenses $ 5,957,437
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY (MUHA) BOARD OF TRUSTEES
CONSENT AGENDA
August 12, 2022
101 Colcock Hall

Authority Operations, Quality, and Finance Committee: Dr. Murrell Smith, Chair

Consent Agenda for Approval

ltem 31.  Appointments, Reappointments, and Delineation of Privileges.........ccoccceeeeiiiccnninnnn.n. Dr. Carrie Herzke
Chief Medical Officer, MUHA

ltem 32. Revised Withholding / Withdrawing Life-Sustaining Treatment Policy. ........ccccccuvee.n. Dr. Carrie Herzke
Chief Medical Officer, MUHA

ltem 33. Revised Medical Staff Rules and Regulations.........cccccuveeivciiieiiiiiin v Dr. Carrie Herzke
Chief Medical Officer, MUHA

Consent Agenda for Information

Item 34. IMIEC IMHINUEES vttt e e et e e e et e e s et e e e et e e s sasaeesabaeessstnesssnaneeres Dr. Carrie Herzke
Chief Medical Officer, MUHA

ltem 35. Contracts aNd AGrEEMENTS ...uuiviiiciiie ettt e e e e e e s sbee e e e narees Annette Drachman
General Counsel

MUHA and MUSC Physical Facilities Committee: Mr. Bill Bingham, Chair

Consent Agenda for Information

Iltem 36. MUHA FY2023 Active Projects >5$250,000 .........ccceecueeereeereeireeirereneeeeeesteesseesreessessseenseenseenses Greg Weigle
Interim Chief Facilities Officer, MUSC

ltem 37. MUSC Facilities Contracts AWarded........ooccvviieeiiiiiiciireeee e e seveaee e e e s Greg Weigle
Interim Chief Facilities Officer, MUSC



Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee May 2022
The Medical Executive Committee reviewed the following applicants on May 18, 2022

and recommends approval by the Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee effective 5/28/2022

Medical Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Ribal Al Aridi, M.D.

Maria Emily Freitas, Au.D.
Byung Joo Lee, D.D.S.
Andrew Press, M.D.
Joseph R Scalea, M.D.

Tina Rushing Woods, D.M.D.
Angela Jiyeon Yoon, D.D.S.

Eryn Nicole Alpert, M.D.

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Medicine
Otolaryngology
Otolaryngology
Emergency Medicine
Surgery

Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery
Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery

Emergency Medicine

Kevin Council Coppedge, D.O. Other Medicine
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-
Suzin Jacob Duwaik, M.D. Other Medicine

John Dewayne Gaskins, M.D.
Reda S Hallaba, M.D.
Radwan Hallaba, M.D.
Randy Scott Kinnard, M.D.

Michael T O'Neil, D.O.

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Narendra Chhaotabhai Patel, M.D. Other

Avinash Gupta, M.D.

Oluwadamilola Odutola, M.D.

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague-

Other

Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Anesthesiology

Medicine

Medical Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Charles Martin Andrews, M.D. Active Neurosurgery

Chirantan Banerjee, M.D. Active Neurology

Tatsiana Y. Beiko, M.D. Active Medicine

Russell Steven Blackwelder, M.D. Active Family Medicine

Angela Rank Choi, M.D. Active Obstetrics & Gynecology
Margaret Elaine Dorlon, M.D. Active Surgery

Ashley Ann Duckett, M.D. Active Medicine

Jonathan Charles Edwards, M.D. Active Neurology

Brian Patrick Flemming, M.D. Active Radiology

Patrick A. Flume, M.D. Active Medicine

Loren Rae Francis, M.D. Active Anesthesiology

John Richard Freedy, M.D. Active Family Medicine
Christopher Gill Goodier, M.D. Active Obstetrics & Gynecology
George Joseph Guldan, Ill, M.D. Active Anesthesiology

Jeanne Griffin Hill, M.D. Active Radiology

Abid Irshad, M.B.B.S Active Radiology



David Glenn Koch, M.D.
Mark Daniel Kovacs, M.D.
Paul Ray Lambert, Jr., M.D.
Lee Rodney Leddy, M.D.
Madelene Carroll Lewis, M.D.
Alvin Lee Lewis, IV, M.D.

Leonard Steven Lichtenstein, M.D.

Abhinava Madamangalam, M.D.
Richard Michael Marchell, M.D.
Eric Morgen Matheson, M.D.
James Thomas McElligott, M.D.
William Brett McGary, M.D.
Jeffrey DeVon McMurray, M.D.
Katherine Ann Morgan, M.D.
Susan Erin Presnell, M.D.

Amanda Townsend Redding, M.D.

Charles Alan Reitman, M.D.
William Jefferson Rieter, M.D.
David Selewski, M.D.

Zachary Michael Soler, M.D.
Leslie Hirsig Spence, M.D.,

Pal Suranyi, M.D.,

Steven Edward Swift, M.D.
Ryan James Tedford, M.D.
Cristian Mauricio Thomae, M.D.
James Clifford Thomas, M.D.
Mary Olivia Titus, M.D.
Thomas Whitley Uhde, M.D.
Celine Ward, M.D.

Ira Richard Willner, M.D.
Abbie Lee Zeffery, D.O.
Manish Prafulla Patel, M.D.
Louise Sutton Boyd, M.D.
Daniel Kam Ng, M.D.

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active

Active Provisional
Affiliate - Colleague
Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Affiliate- Colleague- Other

Medicine

Radiology
Otolaryngology
Orthopaedics
Radiology

Psychiatry

Medicine
Anesthesiology
Dermatology

Family Medicine
Pediatrics

Emergency Medicine
Anesthesiology
Surgery

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Anesthesiology
Orthopaedics
Radiology

Pediatrics
Otolaryngology
Radiology

Radiology

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Pediatrics

Psychiatry

Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Urology

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Medical Staff Reappointment and Change in Clinical Privileges

None

Ismail Mikdat Kabakus, M.D.

Medical Staff Change in Privileges

Active Provisional

Add nuclear RAD

Radiology privilege

Professional Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Allison Marie Caudill, C.R.N.A.
Sue Adams, FNP

Kacie Berry, A.P.R.N.

Cherstin Davis Edmondson, R.D.
Stephanie Luke, M.S.N.

Lisa Pascal Mack, M.S.N.
Elizabeth B McGuan, LICSW
Laurie Dianne Morgan, C.N.M.

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health

Anesthesiology
Medicine

Surgery

MUHA Dietetic Services
Family Medicine

Family Medicine
Psychiatry

Obstetrics & Gynecology



Sarah Watson Paddrik, A.P.R.N.
Yolanda D Walker, A.P.R.N.

Derek Michael Berta, P.A.C.

Brittany D Hein, P.A.C.

Samantha Gwendolyn Hoover, F.N.P.
Avneet Kaur Nagra, P.A.C.

Chad Staples, P.A.C.

Elizabeth Weitzel, FNP-C

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health-
Colleague- Other

Surgery
Surgery

Surgery

Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Emergency Medicine

Medicine

Professional Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Liza Rachel Bergrin, MSN
Bethany Bailey Bradley, C.R.N.A.
Brittany Eliza Bryant, LISW-CP
William H Burke, Ph.D.

Jessica Leigh Casey, P.A.C.
Lillian M Christon Arnold, Ph.D.
Hayne Clifton, C.R.N.A.

Patrick Joseph Coyne, M.S.N.
Melissa L. Hill, A.P.R.N.

Leah Goodwin Hopkins, F.N.P.
Allison Hossfeld, C.R.N.A.,
Brandon Wesley Kote, C.R.N.A.
Robyn Elisabeth Little, C.R.N.A.,
Tyner Leigh Ray Lollis, D.N.P.
Jennifer Blake Mitchell, C.R.N.A.
Angelica Timmerman, N.P.

Jennifer Battaglia Waterhouse, D.N.P.

Warren A. Whitworth, M.S.
Richard E Kidd, D.N.P.

Blenda Christina Ruggiero, P.A.
Victoria Elizabeth Bowen, LPC
Laura Devereaux Buch, P.A.C.
Joanne Sujtira Daniel, P.A.C.
Jessica Evilyn Dial, D.N.P.

Chelsey Alise Durr Massey, A.P.R.N.
Lauren R Nabors, LISW-CP

Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health

Allied Health
Allied Health

Allied Health CFC - Colleague

Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Anesthesiology
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Emergency Medicine
Psychiatry
Anesthesiology
Medicine
Neurosurgery
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Pediatrics
Anesthesiology
Surgery

Surgery
Surgery

Family Medicine

Surgery
Psychiatry
Pediatrics
Urology
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Psychiatry

Professional Staff Reappointment and Change in Privileges

None

Caitlin Elizabeth Crabtree, M.P.A.S.

Tiffany Ann Doyle, FNP-BC

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health CFC

Professional Staff Change in Privileges

Add port
placement/removal
Department change
to MED GIM

Radiology

Family Medicine



Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee June 2022
The Medical Executive Committee reviewed the following applicants on June 15, 2022

and recommends approval by the Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee effective 6.28.22

Joseph Edward Alagna, Jr., D.O.
Mira D Amin, M.D.

Madison Margaret Aspiri, M.D.
Brittany Austin, B.S., M.D.

Steliyana Bakalova-Georgieva, M.D.

Priyanka Ballal, M.D.

Eliza Longstreet Barnwell, M.D.
Robert Earl Sean Bowen, M.D.
Jamel Lekeif Fraizer Brown, M.D.
Daniel Chadwick Butler, M.D.
George Benjamin Carter, M.D.
Nikita Chapurin, M.D., M.H.S.
Vimal B. Choudhari, M.D.
Charlotte Ann Collins, M.D.
Daniel Harrison Cook, M.D.

Christopher Thomas Cordeiro, M.D.

Brittany Paige DePriest, M.D.
Bishnu Prasad Dhakal, M.D.
Rashmi Gyawali Dhakal, M.D.
Brittany L Dobson, M.D.
Anthony Jacob Emanuel, M.D.
Brittainy Renee Erby, M.D.
Hannah C Espeleta, Ph.D.
Colleen Anne Gavigan, M.D.
Christopher Robert Gilbert, D.O.
Megan Elizabeth Goff, D.O.
Tara Grahovac, M.D., B.S.
Matthew Jonathan Graves, M.D.
Kendall Warren Headden, M.D.
Matthew Hewitt, M.D., B.A.
Harriet Bagnal Hinen, M.D.
Teresa Mary Jolley Kilgore, D.O.
Kristen Punshon Kyler, D.O.
Katherine Ruth Lee, M.D.
Richard Robert Lueking, M.D.
Michael Patrick Lugo, M.D.

Kelli Michelle McFarling, M.D.
Brian Henry McGreen, D.O.
Aravind Ajakumar Menon, M.D.
Elizabeth Anne Monter, D.O.
Ellen Margaret Nielsen, M.D.
William John Nixon, M.D.
Brielle Paolini, M.D., Ph.D.

Neil Kanaiyalal Patel, M.D.
Ryan Vincent Puccia, M.D.
Dena Patel Rhinehart, M.D.
Carrie Kristen Riestenberg, M.D.
Meg Katherine Scott, M.D.
Pranav Virenkumar Shah, M.D.

Matthew Chrisman Sherrier, M.D.

Haley Catherine Sibley, M.D.
Harrison Banks Smith, M.D.
Adam Snoap, M.D.

Jacob Christopher Snyder, D.O.
Trevor Stone, M.D.

Medical Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Family Medicine
Ophthalmology
Anesthesiology
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Medicine
Ophthalmology
Anesthesiology
Medicine

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Medicine
Otolaryngology
Anesthesiology
Emergency Medicine
Radiology

Medicine

Pediatrics

Medicine

Medicine

Radiology

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Psychiatry
Department of Nursing
Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Surgery
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Emergency Medicine
Dermatology

Family Medicine
Pediatrics
Dermatology
Medicine

Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Urology

Medicine

Psychiatry

Medicine

Radiology

Radiology
Anesthesiology
Otolaryngology
Medicine

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Medicine
Orthopaedics
Otolaryngology
Medicine
Otolaryngology
Pathology & Lab. Med.
Radiology



Stephen Andrew Thacker, M.D.
Leonel Abelardo Vasquez, M.D.
Alice Yinghui Wang, M.D.
Katherine Vivian Wang, M.D.
Mohan Bangalore Puttaiah, M.D.
Romie Sarand Barnes, D.O.
Ghaila Chinasa Keng, M.D.

David Joseph Annibale, M.D.
Diana D. Antonovich, M.D.
Tiffany Gray Baker, M.D., Ph.D.
Benjamin Will Barnette, M.D.
Graham Wesley Beattie, M.D.
James Frank Bethea, M.D.

Carey Lewis Brewbaker, M.D.
Lauren Meeks Brown, M.D.
Jeremy Robert Burt, M.D.

John B. Cahill, Jr., M.D.

Julio A. Chalela, M.D.

Taylor Ellen Christian, M.D.

Jack Messenger Condrey, Ill, M.D.
Samuel Lewis Cooper, M.D.
Michael Lawrence Craig, M.D.
Brad Allen Eastman, D.O.
Matthew Michael Finneran, M.D.
Tibor Fulop, M.D., Ph.D.

Barry Gibney, D.O.

Barbara B Head, M.D.

Megann Kathleen Helton-Rieter, M.D.
Heather Yaun Hughes, M.D.
Soonho Kwon, M.D.

William Purvis Lancaster, M.D.
Jonathan Ross Lena, M.D.

Maria Gisele Matheus, M.D.
Jared Stewart McKinnon, M.D.
Darlene Harriet Moak, M.D.
Maritere Nazario, M.D.

Bradley William Petkovich, M.D.
Marty Shannon Player, M.D.
Rachel Pemberton Powell, M.D.
Eric Randall Powers, M.D.

Paul Baker Pritchard, IIl, M.D.
Christopher Morris Pruitt, M.D.
Theodore D Ravenel, V, D.M.D.
Federico Jose Rodriguez-Porcel, M.D.
Claire Madden Smith, M.D.
Maria Vittoria Spampinato, M.D.
Sylvia Elaine Szentpetery, M.D.
Frederick William Tecklenburg, M.D.
Meghan Katherine Thomas, M.D.
Elizabeth Mary Wallis, M.D.
Rebecca Jane Wineland, M.D.
Ethan Alexander Ashley, M.D.
Stephen Daniel Ballis, M.D.

John Brenton Bushkar, M.D.
Emily Margaret Campbell, M.D.
Andrew Thomas Cibulas, M.D.
John C Comisi, D.D.S., B.S.

Susan Linn Evenhouse, M.D.

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other

Medical Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Pediatrics

Radiology

Urology

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Emergency Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Medicine

Pediatrics

Dermatology

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Medicine

Medicine

Orthopaedics
Anesthesiology
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Radiology

Pediatrics

Neurosurgery

Family Medicine
Anesthesiology
Radiation Oncology
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Surgery

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Medicine

Surgery

Neurosurgery

Radiology
Anesthesiology
Psychiatry

Pediatrics

Medicine

Family Medicine
Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Neurology

Pediatrics

Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery
Neurology

Psychiatry

Radiology

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Medicine

Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Psychiatry

Pediatrics

Emergency Medicine
Pediatrics

Radiology

Oral & Maxillofacial Surgery
Medicine



Bianca Stephania Farley, M.D.
Christopher Michael Fatora, M.D.
Adam Hastings Fox, M.D.

Kyle Steven Freeman, M.D.
Chadi Hajar, M.D.

Ellen Legare Hay, M.D.

Jerry Johnston, Jr., M.D.

Ismail Mikdat Kabakus, M.D.
Andreea Lazar, M.D.

Claire Elizabeth Milam, M.D.
Christina Marie Mingora, M.D.
Mario Joseph Nigro, M.D.

Sam Tomas Ontiveros, M.D.
Jane Scribner, M.D.

Denise Sese, M.D.

Rani Hassan Shayto, M.D.

lan Blake Smith, D.O.

Jennifer Veronica Smith, M.D.
Jessica Sara Snider, M.D.
Michelle Courtney Spiegel, M.D.
Pritee Tarwade, M.B.B.S.
Charles Spencer Teixeira, D.O.
Charles Terry, M.D.

Evan Michael Verplancken, M.D.
Mason James Walgrave, M.D.
Charlotte Durant Wallace, M.D.
Jeffrey T Waltz, M.D.

Adrienne Wiggins-Metcalf, M.D.
Brian Scott Wirkus, P.A.C.
William Daniel Young, M.D.
Jessica Marie Cook, M.D.

Laura Jane Juul, M.D.

Lyndsay Marie Mueller, M.D.
Yotam Papo, M.D.

Vijay Renga, M.D.

Garrett Colton Kent, M.D.

Erika Maria Anderson, M.D.
Ryan Batson, M.D., B.S.

Erin Gilmore Bhatia, M.D.

Sarah Margaret Carter, M.D.
Christopher Michael Davis, D.O.
Scott Robert Dobson, M.D.
Daniel Justin Dukes, M.D.
Steven Douglas Egge, Sr., M.D.
Ashleigh Brooke Gardner, D.O.
Brittiany Hailey Gray, M.D.
Melanie Schnoor Greene, M.D.
Matthew Lucas Hardy, D.O.
Jennifer Morrison Heegard, M.D.
Elizabeth Perry Hipp, M.D.

Stephen McAlister Jones, Jr., M.D.

Kelly Whittaker Kline, M.D.
James Coan McAlpine, Ill, M.D.
Lindsey McAmis Gouge, M.D.
Sarah Katherine McNemar, M.D.
Ann Winter Meade, M.D.

Carole Irene Mercer, M.D.
Katherine Hoeft Minton, M.D.
Justin Steven Moll, M.D.

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Affiliate

Affiliate

Affiliate

Affiliate

Affiliate

Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague

Medicine
Anesthesiology
Medicine

Radiology

Pathology & Lab. Med.
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Radiology
Anesthesiology
Emergency Medicine
Medicine

Radiology
Emergency Medicine
Dermatology
Medicine

Medicine

Radiology
Anesthesiology
Pathology & Lab. Med.
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Medicine

Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Pediatrics

Radiology

Radiology

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Surgery
Anesthesiology
Family Medicine
Medicine
Medicine
Medicine
Neurology
Family Medicine
Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Pediatrics
Medicine
Family Medicine
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Medicine
Family Medicine
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Medicine
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Medicine
Pediatrics
Pediatrics
Pediatrics



Geeta Nangia, M.D.

Alanna Ahlers Nutz, M.D.
Jeremy Andrew Pickell, M.D.
Maya Mathew Powers, M.D.
Jocelyn R Renfrow, M.D.
Todd Allan Roemmich, M.D.
Joseph Parker Rogers, M.D.
Rachel Jones Sine, M.D.
Maryann Jose Terzella, M.D.
Andrew James White, M.D.
Rebecca Sue Woodlief, M.D.
Bamidele Ayotunde Ajibola, M.D.
Uchechukwu Egbujo, M.D.
Pamela Jean Gizzo, M.D.
Rozi Khan, M.D.

Opeyemi Komolafe, M.D.
Paras Malhotra, M.D.

None

John Glaser, MD
Kimberly Kicielinski, MD
Sara Van Nortwick, MD
Robert Murphy, MD
Abhay Varma, MD

Marlee Mckenzie Bodle, C.R.N.A.
Lauren Ashley Boudreaux, MSN
Haley Marie Brimmer, B.S., M.P.H
TaCorey Sanchez Campbell, CPNP
Natasha Desian Davis, LISW-CP
Jessica Lynn Fragile, N.N.P.
Stephanie Michelle Greene, FNP
Alexander V Kruysman, A.D.N.
Jonathan Andres Littlejohn, D.N.P
Deborah A Marrington, A.P.R.N.
Jordan Drake Mattern, P.A.

Patricia Anne Meiers, B.S.N., M.S.N.

Carrie Prescott, D.N.P.

Sean A. Roles, M.S., B.Sc.

Anna Rose, P.A.

Cameron Taylor Shiflett, N.N.P.
Keith Stanley Sims, C.R.N.A.
Meredith Stamper, C.R.N.A.
Susan Bailey Wells, P.A.C.
Elizabeth Ugino Berry, C.R.N.A.
Steven Jamesayer Hutto, FNP-BC
Michael McGowan, C.R.N.A.
Edward Job Milosz, C.R.N.A.
Dana B Pederson, C.R.N.A.
Joshua Kyle Rosenthal, P.A.C.

Margaret N. Conway-Orgel, N.N.P.

Emily Katherine DePue, P.A.
Maranda Nicole Ferguson, F.N.P.
William Jennings Godwin, Ph.D.
Stephanie E. Hall, N.N.P.
Elizabeth Hambright, A.G.N.P.-C
Emily M Heslop, B.S., M.S.
Margaret B Hudepohl, Ph.D.

Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other

Medical Staff Reappointment and Change in Clinical Privileges

Medical Staff Change in Privileges

Orthopedic Surgery
Neurosurgery
Orthopedic Surgery
Orthopedic Surgery
Neurosurgery

Professional Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Professional Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health

Psychiatry

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Medicine

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Pediatrics

Medicine

Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

adding Use of Robotic Assist
adding Use of Robotic Assist
adding Use of Robotic Assist
adding Use of Robotic Assist

Device.

Anesthesiology
Surgery

MUHA Dietetic Services
Pediatrics

Psychiatry

Pediatrics

Medicine
Department of Nursing
Surgery

Pediatrics

Surgery

Pediatrics

Surgery

Radiation Oncology
Orthopaedics
Pediatrics
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Emergency Medicine
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Surgery

Pediatrics

Urology

Medicine

Radiation Oncology
Pediatrics

Medicine
Orthopaedics
Pediatrics



Amber Lyn Johnson, R.D.

Amanda Marie Jones, P.A.C.

James L. Klein, CPO

Ashley B. Klumb, N.N.P.

Kaylee Knisley, C.R.N.A.

Steven Kramer, Jr., B.S., CP

Amber Nicole Monroe, D.N.P.
Amber Newell, B.S.

Leigh E Ridings, Ph.D.

John Rhett Smith, CPO

Whitney Ann Smith, A.G.N.P.-C
Benjamin A Toll, Ph.D.

Elizabeth Bunch Wachowicz, A.P.R.N.
Johnlyn Olin Nettles, ADN

Ashley Denneil Alexander, AGAC-NP
Jessica Dawn Benes, N.N.P.

Donte L Bernard, Ph.D.

Nicole Kahealani Casadona, P.A.
Candace Gullung Gosnell, C.R.N.A.
David Brian Haver, Jr., Psy.D., M.P.H.
Kristina Dawn Manning, M.P.A.S.
Kimberly Claire Ryan, C.R.N.A,,
Cynthia Ann Plasters, LISW-CP
Caroline Hesse Atkins, P.A.C.
Brittaine H Davis, P.A.C.

Charise Dawn Ebersole, N.P.
Jennifer D Edwards, B.S.N., M.S.N.
Jennifer Lee Goldsmith, P.N.P.
Precious Denyse Anne Goode, M.S.N.
Nathan Heffington, FNP-BC

Hannah Walker Henderson, N.P.
Evelyn Brantley Horne, N.P.

Kathryn K Huguley, N.P.

Vanessa Kanarr, FNP-BC

Haley Nottingham Keith, P.A.C.
Grace King Lott, N.P.

Kate Emily Nattier, P.A.

Elizabeth Chandler Miler Rackley, P.A.
Dorothy Stella Ramsey, N.P.
William Graham Robinson, FNP-BC
Erin Phillips Rogers, P.A.

Paige McCown Rostin, N.P.

Jennifer Hardy Singletary, N.P.
Suzanne Finley Ulmer, CPNP

Tania Chacon Vanderbilt, P.A.C.
Kathryn Heasley Walker, FNP

Professional Staff Reappointment and Change in Privileges

None

Chelsea Veranis, PA

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health

Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health CFC

Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague
Provisional Allied Health CFC - Colleague

Professional Staff Change in Privileges

Medicine Hem Onc

MUHA Dietetic Services
Family Medicine
Orthopaedics
Pediatrics
Anesthesiology
Orthopaedics
Pediatrics
Orthopaedics
Department of Nursing
Orthopaedics
Department of Nursing
Psychiatry
Neurosurgery

Family Medicine
Neurosurgery
Pediatrics

Psychiatry

Medicine
Anesthesiology
Psychiatry

Pediatrics
Anesthesiology

Family Medicine
Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Medicine

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Medicine

Pediatrics

Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Medicine

Pediatrics

Medicine

Medicine

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Pediatrics

Pediatrics

Obstetrics & Gynecology

priv



Mohamed Abdelwahab, M.D.
Christina M Abrams, M.D.

Jessica Atkins, M.D.

Erin Balog, M.D.

Anthony Philip Carnicelli, M.D.
Meghan M Carter, Au.D.

Rebeca Gonzalez, Ph.D.
Alexander Ross Coltoff, M.D., B.A.

Karley Dutra, M.D.

Mohamed Badreldin Elshazly, M.D.

Michele Lynne Esposito, M.D.
Sarah Elizabeth Evins, M.D.
Lauren Elizabeth Fiorillo, M.D.
Mary Laing Holland, B.S., Au.D.
Timothy Jeremiah Horgan, I, D.O.
Daniel Mohammed Hossain, D.O.

William Howell Jarrard, 1ll, B.S., M.D.

Rachel Miriam Kaplan, M.D.
Gabriel Mark Klein, M.D., M.S.
Benjamin Robert Kuhn, D.O.
Deepa Vaduthalakuzhy Luka, M.D.
Rustin Meister, M.D., M.S.
Alexandra Mills, M.D.

Ghada Mohamed, M.D.
Ameet Singh Nagpal, M.D.
Amy Spicer Noxon, AuD
Jeanhyong Park, M.D.

Jennifer Janell Patterson, M.D.
Lauren Nicole Powell, D.O.
Robert Ravinsky, M.D.

Donna Jones Roberts, B.S., M.D.
Mark Allen Stacy, M.D.

Tracy Robertson Voss, M.D.
Joseph Raleigh West, Jr., M.D.
Katrina Bidwell, M.D.

Dennis Deane Garvin, M.D.
Megan Kammerer, D.O.

David William Moon, Sr., M.D.
Benjamin Josef Phelps, D.O.
Julian Floyd Reese, Ill, D.O.

Robert Joseph Adams, M.D.

Mallory Hudson Alkis, M.D.
Joshua Ryan Arenth, M.D.
Rahul Gupta Argula, M.D.
Ryan Matthew Barnes, D.O.
Shayla Marie Bergmann, M.D.
Laura Elizabeth Bishop, D.O.
Colleen Jae Bressler, M.D.
Patrick James Cawley, M.D.
Sung Wook Choi, M.D.
William F. Conway, M.D.
Lindsey Cassini Cox, M.D.
Emily Jones Cullen, M.D.
Anca Dumitriu, M.D.
Andrew David Fisher, M.D.
Gabrielle Fisher, M.D.

Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee July 2022
The Medical Executive Committee reviewed the following applicants on July 20, 2022

and recommends approval by the Board of Trustees Credentialing Subcommittee effective 7.28.22

Medical Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Active Provisional

Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other

Otolaryngology
Pediatrics
Medicine
Pediatrics
Medicine
Otolaryngology
Psychiatry
Medicine

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Medicine

Medicine

Pediatrics

Radiology
Otolaryngology
Pediatrics
Emergency Medicine
Neurology

Medicine

Surgery

Pediatrics

Psychiatry

Pediatrics

Medicine

Neurology
Orthopaedics
Otolaryngology
Emergency Medicine
Psychiatry

Pediatrics
Orthopaedics

Family Medicine
Neurology

Medicine

Family Medicine
Medicine

Urology

Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine
Medicine

Medicine

Medical Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Active

Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active
Active

Neurology

Obstetrics & Gynecology
Pediatrics

Medicine
Emergency Medicine
Pediatrics

Neurology

Pediatrics

Medicine
Anesthesiology
Radiology

Urology

Psychiatry

Pediatrics
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology



Tung Nguyen Giep, M.D. Active Pediatrics

Charles Stephen Greenberg, M.D. Active Medicine
Lucinda Ann Halstead, M.D. Active Otolaryngology
Heather Tripp Henderson, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Elizabeth Higgins, M.D. Active Medicine
Ling-Lun Bob Hsia, M.D. Active Dermatology
Libby Kosnik Infinger, M.D. Active Neurosurgery
Steven Kahn, M.D. Active Surgery
lan Donald Kane, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Kimberly Price Kicielinski, M.D. Active Neurosurgery
Carlene Kingston, M.D. Active Neurology
Jerome Edward Kurent, M.D. Active Neurology
Dustin Paul LeBlanc, M.D. Active Emergency Medicine
Chung Albert Lee, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Angello Lin, M.D. Active Surgery
Andrew Joseph Matuskowitz, M.D. Active Emergency Medicine
Eliza McElwee, M.D. Active Obstetrics & Gynecology
John William McGillicuddy, M.D. Active Surgery
Kimberly Elaine McHugh, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Jessica Emily McLaughlin, M.D. Active Obstetrics & Gynecology
Theodore Richardson McRackan, M.D. Active Otolaryngology
Michelle Frances Meglin, M.D. Active Obstetrics & Gynecology
Oana Maria Nicoara, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Christopher David Nielsen, M.D. Active Medicine
Amanda Faye Northup, M.D. Active Medicine
Sunil Jayavant Patel, M.D. Active Neurosurgery
Dag Pavic, M.D. Active Radiology
Kenneth Mark Payne, M.D. Active Medicine
Clinton Frederick Pillow, M.D. Active Anesthesiology
Sarah Tucker Price, M.D. Active Family Medicine
Alicia Renee Privette, M.D. Active Surgery
Megan Elizabeth Redfern, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Charlotte Ivey Rivers, M.D. Active Radiation Oncology
Jason Patrick Ulm, M.D. Active Surgery
Leigh Meade Vaughan, M.D. Active Medicine
Conrad Williams, IV, M.D. Active Pediatrics

Oral & Maxillofacial
Deirdre Sams Williams, D.D.S. Active Surgery
Mathew David Wooster, M.D. Active Surgery
Milad Yazdani, M.D. Active Radiology
Nikki Elizabeth Yourshaw, M.D. Active Pediatrics
Sanford Manning Zeigler, M.D. Active Surgery
Elizabeth Emrath Zivick, M.D. Active Pediatrics

Julian D Amin, M.D.

Susannah Liberty Brown, M.D.
Helen Jensie Burton, M.D.
Parinita Anil Dherange, M.D.
John Clayton Foster, M.D.

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Otolaryngology
Ophthalmology
Medicine
Medicine
Anesthesiology

Stephanie Shinn Gaydos, M.D. Active Provisional Pediatrics
Kimberly Michelle Green, D.O. Active Provisional Medicine
Austin Grayce Hester, M.D. Active Provisional Urology
Laura Genevieve McCabe, M.D. Active Provisional Psychiatry
Lauren Whitney Mims, D.O. Active Provisional Medicine
Steven Lewis Morgan, M.D. Active Provisional Neurosurgery

Michael Dennis Moxley, M.D.
David C Park, M.D.

Ralitza Hristova Peneva, M.D.
Anita Tambay Perez, M.D.
Maria Cecilia Reyes, M.D.

Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Pathology & Lab. Med.

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Pediatrics
Pathology & Lab. Med.



Hampton Brooks Sasser, M.D.
Sara Rhodes Proctor Short, M.D.
Michael Anthony Smith, M.D.
Christopher Thomas Stem, M.D.
Mason Thomas Turner, M.D.
Aravind Viswanathan, M.D.
Roger Pons, M.D.

Dustin Kelley Dalton, M.D.
Suzann Hutto Weathers, M.D.
Jon Martin McGough, M.D.
Caitlin Sarah Kessler, D.O.

Jason J Hill, D.O.

Jonathan Sawaya Lekoshere, D.O.
Altaf Ahmed, M.D.

Monther Saud Amer Altiti, M.D.

Charles Mosadoluwa Ayanleke, M.D.

Jeffery Joseph Dorociak, M.D.
Deborah Jo Taylor, M.D.

None

John A. Glaser, M.D.

Kimberly Price Kicielinski, M.D.
Robert Francis Murphy, M.D.
Sara Van Nortwick, M.D.
Abhay Kumar Varma, M.B.B.S

Jody E Crouch, A.P.R.N.
Julianne Catherine Gant, O.D.
Anna Catherine Gilg, C.R.N.A.
Jillian Grzeskiewicz, A.P.R.N.
Michael Martz, C.R.N.A.
Meghan Hill Pattavina, C.R.N.A.
Elena Ann Piorkowski, A.P.R.N.
Chelsea Anne Riddle, A.G.N.P.-C
Jessica M Shearer, N.N.P.
Kristen Gayeski Tinkler, O.D.

Alyssa Raquel Greene, A.P.R.N.
Meredith Ellenburg Greene, FNP
Michael Edward Raymo, A.P.R.N.
Jennifer Kaye Turner, FNP

Cheryl Diane Walter, C.R.N.A.

Catherine Cheely Bradley, Ph.D.
Michael Andrew de Arellano, Ph.D.
Catherine O'Connor Durham, D.N.P.
Tina Michele Dvoren-Baker, F.N.P.
Donna B. Embrey, C.R.N.A.
Jacquelyn P French, N.P.,

Clarice Martha Hauschildt, Au.D.
Rochelle Nicole Judd, F.N.P.

John Anthony Kenna, N.P.

Kathryn Elizabeth Kerley, M.S.N.,
Samantha Perry Kinninger, C.R.N.A.,
Tammy J Lamont, C.R.N.A.

Laura Kay Lybarger, D.N.P.

Maegan Elizabeth Manson, A.P.R.N.
Christopher James Mart, M.S.

Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Active Provisional
Affiliate

Affiliate CFC

Affiliate CFC

Affiliate CFC - Colleague
Provisional Affiliate CFC

Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague

Provisional Affiliate CFC - Colleague

Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other
Provisional Affiliate- Colleague- Other

Medicine
Pediatrics
Anesthesiology
Pediatrics
Medicine
Urology
Medicine
Medicine

Family Medicine
Medicine

Family Medicine

Obstetrics & Gynecology

Family Medicine
Orthopaedics
Surgery
Medicine
Medicine
Medicine

Medical Staff Reappointment and Change in Clinical Privileges

Medical Staff Change in Privileges

Active
Active
Active
Active
Active

Orthopaedics
Neurosurgery
Orthopaedics
Orthopaedics
Neurosurgery

Professional Staff Initial Appointment and Clinical Privileges

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other

Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other

Surgery
Ophthalmology
Anesthesiology

Department of Nursing

Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Neurosurgery
Medicine
Pediatrics
Ophthalmology

Pediatrics

Emergency Medicine

Medicine
Medicine

Anesthesiology

Professional Staff Reappointment and Clinical Privileges

Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health
Allied Health

Pediatrics
Psychiatry
Family Medicine
Neurology
Anesthesiology
Family Medicine
Otolaryngology
Medicine
Neurosurgery
Neurosurgery
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Family Medicine
Medicine

Radiation Oncology



Danielle Wiese Prox, A.P.N.

Megan Mercedes Wallace, LISW-CP
Michaela A Buckhannon, LISW-CP
Jody Koziol Eblen, M.S.N.

Elizabeth Anne Hare, C.R.N.A.
Victoria Anne O'Hara, P.A.,
Elizabeth Lauren Silver Sottile, LPC
Megan Lynn Scallion, LMSW

Karis Elena Kellner, P.A.C.
Kristie Wood Wade, F.N.P.
Chloe Walbourne, P.A.C.
None

Chelsea Elizabeth Veranis, P.A.

Allied Health

Allied Health

Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health
Provisional Allied Health CFC

Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other
Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other

Provisional Allied Health- Colleague- Other

Neurosurgery
Psychiatry
Psychiatry
Medicine
Anesthesiology
Anesthesiology
Psychiatry
Family Medicine

Emergency Medicine
Family Medicine

Emergency Medicine

Professional Staff Reappointment and Change in Privileges

Professional Staff Change in Privileges

Provisional Allied Health

Medicine



Summary of Changes to MUSC Health-Charleston
Policy C-023: Withholding / Withdrawing Life-Sustaining Treatment

Removed broken web links to policies throughout the policy.

Page 1-Under Appropriate Medical Treatment, added: “and any
involved health care professionals.”

Page 1-Under Policy, added wording to clarify the goal of the
policy and remove “economic-social.”

Page 2-Under Guidelines for Decision Making, added additional
language to factors to be considered when during discussions
regarding withholding or withdrawing life-sustaining treatment.



MUSC Health — Charleston

Section # Policy # Withholding/Withdrawing Life-
PC-25 C-023 Sustaining Treatment
Responsible Department: Biomedical Ethics
Date Originated Last Reviewed Last Revised Effective Date
06/01/1997 04/01/2019 04/01/2019 03/01/2020

Printed copies are for reference only. Please refer to the electronic copy for the official version.

Definitions:

Appropriate Medical Treatment: Treatment that has a reasonable expectation of meeting goals of
the patient or patient’s surrogate for medical intervention and any involved health care professionals
by ameliorating, improving, restoring, or maintaining a quality of life satisfactory to the patient.

Life-sustaining Treatment: Any medical intervention, technology, procedure, or medication that
forestalls impending death, whether or not the treatment affects the underlying disease process.

Policy:

The goal of health care is to benefit the patient and the process of delivering care should respect the
dignity and integrity of the patient and health care professionals. Appropriate medical treatment
including life-sustaining treatment should be provided in conformity with current medical, ethical, and
legal standards of care. In providing or withdrawing life-sustaining treatment, clinicians should
consider potential harm to patients including but not limited to physical problems (i.e., pain),
psychological, seeial-and ecenemiesocial consequences for the patient.
Experts in organ donation should be contacted following decisions on withholding or withdrawing life-
sustalnlng treatments for a patlent who is a potentlal organ donor. See C-017OrgantFissue

y pdfOrgan and Tissue Donation).

Procedure:

A. Reasons for Considering Withholding/Withdrawing Life-Sustaining Treatment:

1. Refusal of Resusmtaﬂon by Competent Adult Patient. See Policy C-002 Informed
Consent/Refusal ( Lhapany : AN Jpdfinformed
Consent and Refusal).

2. Based upon a written Advance Directive signed by a competent adult patient.

3. Based upon an oral declaration by a competent adult patient if made in the presence of a
physician and one witness.

C-023 - Withholding/Withdrawing Life-Sustaining Treatment
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Refusal by a Surrogate Decision Maker See Pollcy C-002 Informed Consent/Refusal

A pdfinformed Consent and Refusal}.
The surrogate should base his/her deC|S|on on the patient's basic-valdes-and-beliefshealth
care views and desires and any preferences regarding treatment previously expressed to
the extent they are known, and if unknown or unclear, on the patient's best interests.

If the patient is an unemancipated minor, the parent or legal guardian must be consulted
in working toward a decision in the best interests of the child.

a. A minor should be involved in these decisions to the extent of his/her developmental
capacity and the wishes of the minor, particularly mature minors, should be given
great weight in determining what is in the minor's best interests.

b. If a minor is married, enlisted in the armed services, or has a valid declaration of
emancipation, he or she has the authority to make decisions about Life-sustaining
Treatment.

Guidelines for Decision Making:

1.

Every adult who is able to consent as more fully defined in Policy C-002 is legally and
ethically entitled to make health care decisions for themselves. The attending physician,
or designee, is responsible for providing the patient or surrogate with adequate
information about applicable therapeutic and diagnostic options.

The physician should provide advice about the treatment choices and should make
recommendations for treatment based on the patient’s circumstances and should give
reasons, based on medical, experiential, or ethical factors, for such recommendations.

Factors to be considered during discussions regarding withholding or withdrawing Life-

sustaining Treatment should include:

a—The patient’s wishes

a. , health care views and desires

b. The details of patient’'s prognosis, goals of treatment, and the reasons the medical
team believes that the treatments are beneficial or potentially harmful or ineffective

b. The benefits and burdens associated with the treatment options

c. The patient’s life expectaney—proghesis,—and-expectancyand level of functioning with

and without the treatment.

In all cases in which this policy applies, a Progress Note will be entered in the patient's
medical record documenting the process by which the decision to withhold/withdraw life
sustaining treatment was arrived.

A written Allow Natural Death/Limited Resuscitation Progress Note should precede orders
to withhold or withdraw life-sustaining treatment.

Once the decision is made to withhold/withdraw Life-sustaining Treatment, a plan of
palliative care only should be established with the primary objective being relief of
suffering.
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Procedure(s) for Resolving Significant Disagreements [See section of this name in Policy
C-224 Interventions that are Ineffective or Harmful

Interventions that are Ineffective or

C-023 - Withholding/Withdrawing Life-Sustaining Treatment
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Related Policies:

C- 001 Patient’s nghts and Respon3|blllt|es
(h AN

quhts & ResponS|b|I|t|es
C-012 Advance Directives {htip/in
(ADS) Patient Self Determlnatlon Act)

C-013 Resuscitation Orders (httpAannan . G
Tissue Donation v.1) https://musc. pollcvtech com/dOCV|ew/’>dOC|d 4890 }
C- 015 Gwdelmes for the Determlnatlon of Death {in Infants and Children
pdf Guidelines for Determination of Death of

pdfPatient Rights & Responsibilities} Patient

pdfAdvance Directives

pdf Organ and

Infants and Chlldren }

C-016 Decedent Care Program (hitp:/Anmans ,
Care Program)__Guidelines for Determlnatlon of Death of Infants and Chlldren
C-017 Organ/Tissue Donation {http:/An i
Tissue Donation)

C-050 Care at the End of Life (httpiansan
Tissue Donation v.1 ) https://musc. pollcvtech com/docwew/”domd 4890 )
C-125 Organ Donation after Cardiopulmonary Death (DCD)
(httpshaannvmuscedulmedcenter/policy/Med/C125pdf Organ and Tissue Donation v.1)
https://musc.policytech.com/docview/?docid=4890 )

C- 224 Interventlons that are Ineffectlve or Harmful

(h A 4pdf Organ and Tissue Donation v.1)
https //musc pollcvtech com/docwew/’)doud 4890 }

pdfOrgan and

Organ and
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Summary of Changes to Medical Staff Rules and Regulations
MUSC Health Charleston Division

Reasoning: Changes required in Rules & Regulations policy to enable compliance with updated
DHEC Code of Law 44-63-74.

e SC DHEC Code of Law 44-63-74 was approved by SC Legislation in 2016. The law required
penalties for noncompliance with death certification however the fines were never imposed
at that time due to the state of the electronic Vital Records system.

* |n 2019 DHEC updated the Vital Records system to what we currently use today. The entire
process for death certification is now electronic including all processes completed by
certifying hospital physicians, morgues, coroner offices, funeral homes, and primary care
physicians for outpatient deaths.

» Effective July 1, 2022, SC DHEC Vital Records: Will implement and test the new electronic
notification system for non-compliance with the requirement for death certification
completion within 48 hours of the death. The testing will start in June, July, and August. No
penalties will be imposed at this time.

e Effective Sept 1, 2022, SC DHEC Vital Records will send notifications for non-compliance
with possible penalties that could be imposed on the certifying physician.

% Penalties are $200 for a first violation or a warning letter
%+ $500 for a second violation

+¢+ 51000 for a third or subsequent violation

++» PENALTIES ARE PER DAY UNTIL CASE IS CERTIFIED

Medical Staff Rules & Regulations Page 9
Medical Records Preparation and Completion/Completion Requirements
Addition to list:
EPIC Death Note - prior to transport of decedent to Morgue.
EPIC Death Summary — final version within 12 hours of pronouncement of death.

Medical Staff Rules & Regulations page 10
Delinquency Summary Table: Update as listed below.

Medical Record Reqtflred. Attending’s Slgnatu.re, Deemed
Required Element Completion Time APRN, or PA-C Required Delinquent at:
9 Within: Within: q '
Prior to transport 12 hours
Death Note decedent to Morgue (excludes PA-C) 1 Day
Final version within 24 hours
Death Summaries 12 hours of death . . 2 Days
(attending signature only)
pronouncement
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AGREEMENTS ENTERED INTO BY THE MEDICAL UNIVERSITY HOSPITAL
AUTHORITY SINCE THE MAY 2022 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Hospital Services - Any contract involving the exchange of Hospital services either for money or other
services.

Managed Care - The Medical Center has entered a Managed Care Agreement with the following:

AETNA X2

BCBSSC X3

Bright Health Management, Inc.
Cigna

Crescent Hospice

Seven Corners, Inc.

Medicaid Branches of DHHS

Transplant Agreements - For the institution(s) listed below, the Medical Center Transplant Unit agrees
to provide tissue typing and transplantation to those patients who are medically suitable and to follow
those patients in the transplant clinic at MUSC.

Transfer Agreements - MUHA agrees to accept the admission of individuals requiring specialized care
and meet certain criteria from the following facilities:

Calhoun Convalescent Center
Chesterfield Convalescent Center
Dialysis Clinic, Inc. (DCI) X2

Faith Healthcare Center

Fresenius Medical Care

Hallmark Healthcare Center

Jolley Acres Healthcare Center

Lake Emory Post Acute Care

Lancaster Healthcare Center

McLeod Regional Medical Center
Magnolia Manor Greenville

Magnolia Manor Greenwood

Magnolia Manor Inman

Magnolia Manor or Rock Hill

Magnolia Manor of Spartanburg
Midlands Health and Rehab

Oakbrook Health and Rehab

Palmetto Prince George Operating, LLC
Physical Rehabilitation and Wellness of Spartanburg
Riverside Health and Rehabilitation
South Carolina Hospital Association (SCHA) X2
Southpoint Healthcare and Rehabilitation
Springdale Healthcare Center

St. George Healthcare Center

Valley Falls Terrace Healthcare



Affiliation Agreements —

Triad of Alabama LLC d/b/a Flowers Hospital
Bradley University

Le Moyne College

Mary Black College of Nursing
Morehouse School of Medicine

Old Dominion University

Queens University at Charlotte

Revived Medical Training Academy, LLC
University of South Carolina (USC) Aiken
Wake Forrest School of Medicine
Webster University

Woolard Technology Center

Charleston Southern University

Concordia University St. Paul, MN
Emory University

Rush University Medical Center

Texas Christian University

Virginia Commonwealth

Shared Services Agreements —
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MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
FOR REPORTING
AUGUST 11, 2022

MUSC Indefinite Quantity Contract Releases

Compass 5 Partners, LLC

Campus Elevator Modernization Project

GWA, Ina.

TG Research Building-Generator Replacement

Other Contracts

Rosenblum Coe Architeats, Inc.

College of Nursing 1lst Floor Renovation

REI Engineers, Inoc.

BSB Exterior Envelope Repalrs

Compass 5 Partners, LLC
New COP Addition & Innovative Instructional Redesign
Liollio

College of Medicine Office & Academic¢ Building

$189,505.00

$193,500.,00

$250,606,00

$102,885.00

$67,022,00

$1,563,930.00




MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA
CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
FOR REPORTING
AUGUST 11, 2022

MUSC Task Order Contract Releases

Stenstrom & Associates
College of Health Professions B Restroom Renovation

MUSC General Construction Projects

Triad Mechanical Contractors, Inc.
TG Research Building Humidifier Replacement

Metro Electric Co., Inc.
Medium Voltage Feeder Cable Replacement

Triad Mechanical Contractors, Inc.
BSB AHU-3 Replacement

Whiting Turner Contracting Company

$102,500.00

$62,179.00

$132,720.00

$824,411.00

$350,690.17

New College of Pharmacy Addition & Innovative Instructional Redesign

Other Contracts:

New College of Pharmacy Addition & Innovative Instructional Redesign:

Dauphin-Auditorium Fixed Seating
Internetwork Engineering-Network Switching

$316,992
$109,242



MEDICAL UNIVERSITY OF SOUTH CAROLINA (MUSC) BOARD OF TRUSTEES
CONSENT AGENDA
August 12, 2022
101 Colcock Hall

Education, Faculty & Student Affairs Committee: Barbara Johnson-Williams, Chair

Consent Agenda for Approval

ltem 28.  Endowed Chair APPOINTMENTS.......coeiiiiiiiiiiieee e et e e e et e e e erae e e e e bae e e e Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine
Eugene Chang, M.D., Professor in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology, as the
Spaulding-Paolozzi Endowed Chair for OB/GYN, effective August 12, 2022.

Erin Forster, M.D., MPH, Associate Professor in the Department of Medicine as the
Marvin Jenkins Family IBD Endowed Chair, effective August 12, 2022.

Iltem 29.  Distinguished University Professor........ccoociiii ittt Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine

Janice D. Key, M.D., Professor in the Department of Pediatrics, effective August 12,
2022.

College of Pharmacy
Patrick M. Woster, Ph.D., Professor in the Department of Drug Discovery and
Biomedical Sciences, effective August 12, 2022.

EM 30.  FACUIY TENUIE ettt e e e et e e e e bte e e e e bte e e e ebte e e e ensteeeeansteeeennnees Dr. Lisa Saladin

Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Health Professions

Roxanna Bendixen, Ph.D., OTR/L, FAOTA, Associate Professor in the Department of
Rehabilitation Sciences, Division of Occupational Therapy, effective July 1, 2022. Dr.
Bendixen will also serve as the Dire Division of Occupational Therapy Director.

ltem 31.  Change in FACUILy STAtUS ....cc.coiiiiiiii i e e e erre e e e Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine
Erin K. Balog, M.D., from Affiliate Assistant Professor to Clinical Associate Professor, in
the Department of Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics, effective July 11, 2022.

Jeremy R. Burt, M.D., from Professor, to Adjunct Professor, in the Department of
Radiology and Radiological Science, effective July 1, 2022.



Marcelo F. Lopez, M.D., from Research Associate Professor to Associate Professor, on
the Academic Investigator track, in the Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral
Sciences, effective April 1, 2022.

Jennifer K. Poon, M.D., from Associate Professor to Adjunct Associate Professor in the
Department of Pediatrics, Division of Developmental-Behavioral Pediatrics, effective July
1, 2022.

Wing-Kin Syn, M.D., Ph.D., from Professor to Adjunct Professor, in the Department of
Medicine, Division of Gastroenterology and Hepatology, effective July 1, 2022.

College of Dental Medicine
M. Kinon Lecholop, DMD, from Affiliate Associate Professor to Research Associate
Professor in the Department of Oral Health Sciences, effective May 1, 2022.

College of Nursing
Gayenell Magwood, Ph.D., RN, FAHA, FAAN, from Professor to Affiliate Professor,
effective August 1, 2022.

[tem 32.  FACUlty APPOINTMENTS....ccciiiiiii ettt e e e e e tre e e e ebae e e e e bee e e e sarree e eanees Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine

Saverio Gentile, Ph.D. as Associate Professor, on the Academic Investigator track, in the
Department of Cell and Molecular Pharmacology and Experimental Therapeutics,
effective June 1, 2022.

Christopher Robert Gilbert, D.O., as Professor, on the Clinician Educator track, in the
Department of Medicine, Division Pulmonary and Critical Care Medicine, effective July 1,
2022.

Azizul Haque, Ph.D., [dual appointment] as Associate Professor in the Department of
Neurosurgery, effective June 1, 2022. His primary appointment rests in the Department
of Microbiology and Immunology.

Benjamin Robert Kuhn D.O., as Clinical Professor, in the Department of Pediatrics,
Division of Pediatric Gastroenterology, effective August 1, 2022.

Byung Joo Lee, D.D.S. as Clinical Associate Professor, in the Department of
Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery, with a joint appointment as Clinical Associate
Professor, in the College of Dental Medicine, Department of Oral and Maxillofacial
Surgery, effective June 1, 2022.

Ameet S. Nagpal, M.D., as Professor, on the Clinician Educator track, in the Department
of Orthopaedics and Physical Medicine, effective August 1, 2022.

Elizabeth Rinker, M.D., as Associate Professor, on the Clinician Educator track in the
Department of Pathology and Laboratory Medicine, effective September 10, 2022.



Steven Andrew Thacker, M.D., as Associate Professor, on the Clinician Educator track,
in the Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Infectious Diseases, effective July
1, 2022.

Leonel A. Vasquez, M.D., as Clinical Professor, in the Department of Radiology and
Radiological Science, effective July 1, 2022.

Tracy R. Voss M.D., as Clinical Associate Professor, in the Department of Medicine,
Division of General Internal Medicine, effective August 1, 2022.

College of Health Professions

Christina Pelatti, Ph.D., CCC-SLP, as Associate Professor, in the Department of
Rehabilitation Sciences, Division of Speech-Language Pathology, tenure track, effective
August 1, 2022. Dr. Pelatti will also serve as the Division Director of Speech-Language
Pathology.

ltem 33.  Affiliate Faculty APPointmMeENts .......ccoociiiiiiiiie e Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine
Tsveti Markova, M.D., as Affiliate Professor, in the Department of Family Medicine, retroactive
to August 1, 2021.

Iltem 34. B T EIMEITEUS e et ittt ettt ee ettt e ettt e et e e s et baeesssataeesessratessassaeesssssaeessasasesssrasesssnees Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

College of Medicine
Truman R. Brown, Ph.D., from Professor to Professor Emeritus, in the Department of
Radiology and Radiological Science, effective July 1, 2022.

Joel B. Cochran, D.O., from Associate Professor to Professor Emeritus in the
Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Critical Care, effective July 1, 2022.

Florence Niles Hutchison, M.D., from Professor to Professor Emerita, in the Department
of Medicine, Division of Nephrology, effective May 12, 2022.

Sherron McQueen Jackson, M.D., from Associate Professor to Professor Emerita in the
Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Hematology/Oncology, effective July 1,
2022.

Harold D. May, Ph.D., from Professor to Professor Emeritus, in the Department of
Microbiology and Immunology, effective September 1, 2022.

William S. Randazzo, M.D., from Assistant Professor to Assistant Professor Emeritus in
the Department of Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics, effective July 1, 2022

William Michael Southgate, M.D., from Professor to Professor Emeritus in the
Department of Pediatrics, Division of Neonatology, effective July 1, 2022.



College of Dental Medicine
Elizabeth S Pilcher, DMD, from Professor to Professor Emerita, in the Department of
Oral Rehabilitation, effective September 1, 2022.

Item 35. Promotions effective January 1, 2023 .........ooeiieiiieeeeciee ettt et e e e e e e Dr. Lisa Saladin
Executive Vice President for Academic Affairs and Provost

From Associate Professor to Professor, Academic Investigator track
Wei Jiang, M.D., Department of Microbiology and Immunology

From Associate Professor to Professor, Academic Investigator/Educator track
Heather A. Boger, Ph.D., Department of Neuroscience

From Associate Professor to Professor, Clinician Educator track

Carlee A Clark, M.D., Department of Anesthesia and Perioperative Medicine

Benjamin F. Jackson, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Emergency
Medicine

Lucinda A. Halstead, M.D., Department of Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery; Dual
in Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics

Jennifer J. Jaroscak, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of Hematology/Oncology
Eric M. Matheson, M.D., Department of Family Medicine

Julie Ryan McSwain, M.D., MPH, Department of Anesthesia and Perioperative Medicine
John D. Melville, M.D., MS, Department of Pediatrics, Division of Child Abuse Pediatrics
Cynthia L. Talley, M.D., Department of Surgery, Division of General Surgery

Catherine D. Tobin, M.D., Department of Anesthesia and Perioperative Medicine

From Clinical Associate Professor to Clinical Professor, Modified track
Eric L. Berman, M.D., Department of Ophthalmology; Dual in Department of Neurology

From Assistant Professor to Associate Professor, Academic Investigator track

Kristine Y. Deleon-Pennell, Ph.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Cardiology
Antonios Kourtidis, Ph.D., Department of Regenerative Medicine and Cell Biology
Michael D. Scofield, Ph.D., Department Anesthesia and Perioperative Medicine; Dual in
Department of Neuroscience

From Assistant Professor to Associate Professor, Academic Investigator / Educator track
Allison K. Wilkerson, Ph.D., Department of Psychiatry and Behavioral Sciences

From Assistant Professor to Associate Professor, Clinician Educator track

Ryan M. Barnes, DO, Department of Emergency Medicine; Dual in Department of
Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Emergency Medicine; Joint in CHP, Department of
Clinical Sciences, Division Physician Assistant Studies

Sonal O. Bhatia, MBBS, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Neurology
Charles A. Daly, M.D., Department of Orthopaedics and Physical Medicine

Barry C. Gibney, DO, Department of Surgery, Division of Cardiothoracic Surgery

John M. Kaczmar, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Hematology/ Oncology;
Dual in Department of Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery

Jonathan R. Lena, M.D., Department of Neurosurgery




Morgan P. McBee, M.D., Department of Radiology and Radiological Science

Amerendra K. Nappalli, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Hematology /
Oncology

William J. Rieter, M.D., Ph.D. Department of Radiology and Radiological Science

Nathan C. Rowland, M.D., Ph.D., Department of Neurosurgery; Dual in Department of
Neurology

Christine B. San Giovanni, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics
Judith M. Skoner, M.D., Department of Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery

Conrad S.P. Williams, IV, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of General Pediatrics
Elizabeth E. Ziwick, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of Pediatric Critical Care

From Research Assistant Professor to Research Associate Professor, Modified track
Christy Nicole Cassarly, Ph.D., Department of Public Health Sciences; Dual in
Department of Otolaryngology-Head and Neck Surgery; Joint in CHP, Healthcare
Leadership Management

From Clinical Assistant Professor to Clinical Associate Professor, Modified track

Diana Antonovich, DDS, Department of Dermatology and Dermatologic Surgery
James F. Hill, lll, OD, Department of Ophthalmology

Eugenia K. Kagan, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Infectious Diseases
Henry M. Lemon, M.D., Department of Pediatrics, Division of Children’s Care Network
Barry W Sigal, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Pulmonary and Critical Care
Kristin R. Wise, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Hospital Medicine

From Affiliate Assistant Professor to Affiliate Associate Professor
Alisher R. Dadabayer, M.D., Department of Anesthesia and Perioperative Medicine
Rami G. Zebian, M.D., Department of Medicine, Division of Pulmonary and Critical Care

Other Business for the Board of Trustees

Iltem 36.  Revisions to the Board Policy on Travel .........cocccviiiieei e, Dr. James Lemon
Chairman




































































































































Policy Title MUSC Board Policy on Travel

Classification University

MUSC Hospital Authority (MUHA)

Approval Authority Board of Trustees
Responsible Entity Board of Trustees
Policy Owner Board Secretary

VI.

Policy Statement

The Board of Trustees desires to act lawfully and in compliance with policy at all times. This
policy provides guidance for compliant reimbursement of expenses incurred by the Board of
Trustees and Trustees Emeriti.

Scope
This policy applies to the Board of Trustees and Trustees Emeriti.

Approval Authority
Board of Trustees

Purpose of This Policy
This policy defines how members of the Board of Trustees and Trustees Emeriti are reimbursed
for expenses incurred while on official MUSC/MUHA business.

Who Should Be Knowledgeable About This Policy
Members of the Board of Trustees

Board Secretary

Accounts Payable

The Policy

MILEAGE

Board of Trustee members (Trustees) and Trustees Emeriti (Emeriti) will be reimbursed at the
state mileage rate for one personal vehicle used while on official MUSC/MUHA business.

MEALS

Trustees and Emeriti will be reimbursed for meals not otherwise provided. Guests having a clear
connection or future/potential connection to MUSC may be invited to dinner by the Trustees at
MUSC’s expense. If a Trustee is unsure whether or not a guest qualifies as “invited,” he/she
should contact the Board Secretary for guidance. Names of the invited guests and a clear
business purpose should be included on the reimbursement request form.

No meal reimbursements are to be paid from State Appropriated Funds. The cost of meals
should not be excessive and reimbursements will be limited to $163.20 125-perperson-perday
including taxes, fees, and tips.

MUSC Internal Audit staff will review board expenses on an annual basis to determine
compliance with the policy. Should an over-reimbursement occur, the Trustee or Emeriti will be
asked to reimburse MUSC the amount of the overpayment.



VII.

VIIL.

LODGING
The Board of Trustees will contract from time to time with a local hotel for rooms for Trustees,
Emeriti, and guests invited by the Board. The following items will be covered:

e Aroom up to $350450 per night before taxes and fees.
e  One valet parking space per night.

Reimbursements for lodging are not to be paid from State Appropriated Funds. Trustees and
Emeriti will be expected to make arrangements for all other expenses not covered by this policy.

There is a 72-hour advance cancellation requirement for room reservations. Trustees and
Emeriti will be responsible for charges incurred when the 72-hour cancellation requirement is
not met.

TRUSTEES EMERITI

Trustees Emeriti provide support for the University as knowledgeable friends and ambassadors.
The Board of Trustees extends an invitation to Emeriti, subject to all travel policies, to attend
Board meetings and/or special events up to three (3) nights per calendar year, at the expense of
the Board. While Emeriti may visit more often, reimbursement for mileage and lodging will be
limited to three (3) nights per calendar year. Emeriti are not subject to receive an honorarium
payment. Reimbursements for Emeriti expenses are not to be paid from State Appropriated
Funds.

BOARD SECRETARY

The Board Secretary is not authorized to provide meals, entertainment, gifts, or other similar
items for the benefit of Trustees or their guests while attending official Board meetings unless
all Trustees are invited/included. Official MUSC/MUHA meetings and appointments outside of
Board meetings do not apply to this provision. The Board Secretary will comply with all laws and
policies regarding meals, entertainment, gifts, or other similar items. All requests for
reimbursement should specify the business purpose and a list of attendees.

Special Situations
N/A

Sanctions for Non-compliance

Trustees and Emeriti will be expected to make arrangements for all other expenses not covered
by the policy. Should an over-reimbursement occur, the Trustee or Emeriti will be asked to
reimburse MUSC the amount of the overpayment.

Related Information
A. References, citations
SC Appropriation Act, General Provisions, Travel — Subsistence Expenses & Mileage:

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/budget.php

SC Appropriation Act, General Provisions, Per Diem:
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/budget.php

B. Other

C. Appendices


http://www.scstatehouse.gov/budget.php
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/budget.php

X. Communication Plan
This policy will be provided to all Trustees and Emeriti.

Xl. Definitions

Xll. Review Cycle
At least every five years.

Xl Approval History
Approval Authority Date Approved
Board of Trustees February 2015
Board of Trustees April 2017
Board of Trustees February 2020
Board of Trustees August 2022

XIV.  Approval Signature

Board of Trustees Chairman Date
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